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Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer

Rawalpindi Dated: October 05, 2022

VISION STATEMENT

We envision ourselves as a leading company known for its values, good business 
practices and optimum quality standards in diversified products & services with 
sustained growth.

MISSION STATEMENT

To provide quality products and services to our customers and to explore new era to 
achieve the highest level of success.

D.M. Textile Mills Limited
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STATEMENT OF ETHICS AND BUSINESS PRACTICES

D M Textile Mills Limited has laid down the following Ethics and Business Practices , 
the observance of which is compulsory for all the directors and staff members of the 
company in the conduct of company's in order to protect and safeguard the 
reputation and integrity of the company at all levels of its operations.  Any 
contravention of these Ethics and Business Practices is regarded as misconduct. 
The company will ensure that all the executives and subordinate staff members are 
fully aware of these standards and principles.

1. Conflict of interest
All staff members are expected not to engage in any activity which can cause conflict 
between their personal interests and company's interests, such as:

     a) In effecting the purchases for the company and selling its products the directors and 
the staff members are forbidden from holding any personal interest in any 
organization supplying goods or services to the company or buying its products.

     b) The staff members should not engage in any outside business while serving the 
company.

     c) Staff members are not permitted to conduct personal business in company's 
premises or use company's facilities for the same.

     d) If a staff member has direct or indirect relationship with an outside organization 
dealing with the company he must disclose the same to the management.

2. Confidentiality
All staff members are required not to divulge any secrets / information's of the 
company to any outsider even after leaving the service of the company unless it is so 
required by a court of law. During the course of service in the company they should 
not disseminate any information relating to business secrets of the company without 
the consent of management.

3. Kickbacks
All staff members are strictly  forbidden not to accept any favour, gifts or kick backs 
from any organization dealing with the company. In case if such a favour is 
considered, in the interest of the company, the same should be disclosed clearly to 
the management.

4. Proper Books of Accounts
All funds, receipts and disbursements should be properly recorded in the books of 
accounts of the company. No false or fictitious entries should be made or misleading 
statements pertaining to the company or its operations should be issued. All 
agreements with agents, dealers and consultants should be made in writing 
supported with required evidence.

D.M. Textile Mills Limited
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5. Relationship with Government officials, suppliers, buyers and agents etc.
The dealings of the company with Government officials, suppliers, buyers, agents 
and consultants of the company should always be such that the integrity of the 
company and reputation is not damaged. Members having queries in connection 
with how to deal with these requirements should consult with the management.

6. Health and Safety
Every staff member is required to take care of his health and safety and of those 
working with him. The management is responsible for keeping its staff members 
insured as per government rules and regulations.

7. Environment
To preserve and protect the environment, all staff members are required to operate 
the company's facilities and processes so as to ensure maximum safety of the 
adjoining communities and strive continuously to improve environmental 
awareness and protections.

8.  Alcohol and  Drugs etc.
All types of gambling and betting at the company's work place are strictly forbidden. 
Also taking of any alcohols or drugs inside the work places is not allowed and any 
member of the staff, not abiding by these prohibitions will attract disciplinary as well 
as penal action under the law.

9. Coordination among staff members to maintain Discipline
All staff members will work in close coordination with their co-workers, superiors and 
colleagues. Every member will cooperate with other members so that the 
company's work is carried out effectively and efficiently. All cases of non- 
cooperation among staff members should be reported to the management for 
necessary and suitable action. Strict disciplinary action will be taken against those 
staff members who violate the rules and regulations of the company.

10.  Workplace harassment 
All members of the staff will provide an environment that is free from harassment 
and in which all employees are equally respected.  Work place harassment means 
any action that creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive environment which may 
include sexual harassment, disparaging remarks based on gender, religious, race 
or ethnicity.

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer

Rawalpindi Dated: October 05, 2022
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW REPORT

I am pleased to present the annual financial statements along with Directors' Report & Auditors' 

Reports for the period ended 30-06-2022. The Management is continuously trying its level best 

to utilize the available resources for the betterment of the Company. Management has positive 

intention and capability to revive the company.

I acknowledge and appreciate the contributions of the employees for betterment of the 
Company.
 

Mian Habib Ullah

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Rawalpindi: October 05, 2022

D.M. Textile Mills Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of D.M. Textile Mills Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Adverse Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of D.M. Textile Mills Limited (the 
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, and the 
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion 
section of our report, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the 
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement 
of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof do not conform with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and do not give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required 
and respectively do not give a true and fair view of state of the Company's affairs as at 30 
June 2022 and of the profit, other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its 
cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

(I) The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing of yarn and cloth, processing 
of the cloth and trade of textile products. However, the Company has been unable to 
arrange fresh financing for working capital and other purposes. The mill remained closed 
since 2014 due to shortage of working capital. As at the reporting date, the Company had a 
few employees. The mill could not resume operations till the date of this report. we were not 
provided with any workable business plan for sale of freehold land and / or arrangement of 
financing for development of manufacturing facilities as well as operational activities. The 
management of the Company did not provide us its assessment of going concern 
assumption used in preparation of these financial statements and the future financial 
projections indicating the economic viability of the Company. These events indicate a 
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue 
as a going concern and therefore it may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its 
liabilities in the normal course of business. These financial statements (and notes thereto) 
do not disclose this fact. These financial statements have been prepared on the going 
concern basis.

D.M. Textile Mills Limited
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(Ii) As more fully explained in Note 13 to the financial statements, the Company 
advanced an amount of Rupees 51.150 million against purchase of property. The property 
could not be transferred in the Company's name due to the want of completion of legal 
formalities. Directions were given for transferring the property in the name of the Company 
within thirty days of the order of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) 
dated 29 November 2007. SECP also ordered to calculate the amount of profit which could 
have been earned on the amount of Rupees 51.150 million if invested with any scheduled 
bank, on daily product basis in the relevant period and directed that this amount be 
deposited proportionately, in the Company's account, by directors who are penalized under 
the order. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company filed an appeal before the 
Lahore High Court (LHC), Rawalpindi Bench whereby stay order was granted to suspend 
the operation of above said order. The Board of Directors of the Company, after getting 
valuation of the property at forced sale value of Rupees 72.007 million from M/s NAKMS 
Associates (Private) Limited, resolved in its meeting held on 23 April 2014 that the right in 
property along with fixtures and fittings be offered to the CEO at the fixed floor price of 
Rupees 75 million. Whereas, as per Capital Development Authority (CDA), the property has 
already been transferred in the name of CEO through a court decree. The LHC, Rawalpindi 
Bench in its interim order dated 06 February 2015 granted adjournment with the directions 
not to transfer / alienate the property / undertaking of the Company in any form or manner 
whatsoever. Meanwhile, the case has been transferred to the Islamabad High Court (IHC), 
Islamabad and on 03 May 2016, IHC, on submission of CEO, ordered to transfer the 
property in the name of the Company within sixty days. The CEO filed a petition before the 
IHC to seek relief on the grounds that the said property has already been attached in the 
cases titled The Bank of Punjab versus Bilal Fibers Limited and The Bank of Punjab versus 
Bilal Textiles (Private) Limited wherein the CEO was a guarantor. Meanwhile, the Board of 
Directors and the shareholders in their meetings held on 09 October 2016 and 31 October 
2016 respectively resolved to reverse the transaction of sale of property to CEO, subject to 
completion of legal formalities and in accordance with rules / laws / procedures. The 
Company filed a suit before the court of Senior Civil Judge 1st class (West), Islamabad 
dated 17 October 2017 against the CEO while making SECP and CDA parties to the case 
for directions to transfer the property in the name of the Company. Civil Judge 1st Class 
(West), Islamabad, vide order dated 28 July 2021 accepted the Company's appeal and 
directed to submit evidence which is pending adjudication. Meanwhile, IHC, Islamabad, 
vide its order dated 16 November 2017, reduced the penalty from Rupees 100,000 to 
Rupees 50,000 to be paid by each director of the Company within the period of thirty days. 
The Company also filed an appeal before the LHC, Lahore Bench in May 2018 for 
detachment of the property, so the property can be transferred in the name of the Company, 
which is pending adjudication. The SECP filed an appeal before the IHC, Islamabad, dated 
13 September 2018 for execution of IHC decision dated 16 November 2017 to appoint 
statutory auditors to conduct a special audit to calculate the amount of profit which should 
have been earned on the amount of Rupees 51.150 million, if invested with any schedule 
bank on daily product basis in the relevant period, and further requested the IHC to send 
notice to LHC, Lahore, for release of the property. The matter is pending adjudication. The 
Bank of Punjab filed an appeal before the IHC, Islamabad to set-aside orders dated 03 May 
2016 and 16 November 2017. The matter is pending adjudication. On 24 May 2022, the 
Company filed an application before Islamabad High Court, Islamabad praying that The 
Bank of Punjab and Bilal Fibers Limited and Bilal Textiles (Private) Limited have entered 
into a settlement agreements, hence, the said property may please be declared as lawful 
property of D.M. Textile Mills Limited. The matter is pending adjudication. We could not 
ensure compliance with the above stated directions and satisfy ourselves as to the use of 
forced sale value of the property for adjustment of the advance against property.

D.M. Textile Mills Limited
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We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Except for the matters described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section, we have 
determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and 
our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. Because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for 
Adverse Opinion section of our report, we have concluded that the other information is 
materially misstated for the same reasons. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process.

D.M. Textile Mills Limited
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as 
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

· Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

· Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

· Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

D.M. Textile Mills Limited
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We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period 
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

A) except for the effects of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion 
section of our report, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as 
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

B) except for the effects of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion 
section of our report, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or 
loss, the statement of  comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity 
and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up 
in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with 
the books of account and returns;

C) except for the effects of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion 
section of our report, investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees 
extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company's business; and 

D) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII 
of 1980). 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is 
Raheel Arshad.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

ISLAMABAD

Date: October 05,2022

UDIN: AR202210187Aapr9SwYF

D.M. Textile Mills Limited



Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of company: D.M. Textile Mills Limited)
Year ending: 30 June 2022

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:-

1. The total number of directors are 07 as per the following:

Male 07

Female -

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

i) Independent Directors 02

ii) Non-Executive Directors 03

iii) Executive Directors 02

Determination of number of independent Directors comes to 2.33 (rounded to 2) which is based on Seven 
Directors. The fraction contrived in one-third number is not rounded up as the two elected independent 
directors have requisite competencies, skills, knowledge and experience to discharge and execute their 
duties competently, as per applicable laws and regulations. As they fulfill the necessary requirements as 
per applicable laws and regulations, hence, appointment of a third independent director is not warranted.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed 
companies, including this Company;

4. The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have 
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and 
procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 
policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the 
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have 
been taken by the Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and 
these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director 
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and 
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the 
Board;

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in 
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

9. The Board has not arranged Directors' Training program for the following:

1. Mr. Amer Zeb
2. Mr. Suleman Khan
3. Mr. Syed Hameed Ul Haq
4. Mr. Rao Khalid Pervaiz

10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, Company secretary and 
head of internal audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment 
and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

Annual Report 2022
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11. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before 
approval of the Board;

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below: -

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and 
advised to the committee for compliance;

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following: 

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who are considered suitably qualified 
and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the 
Company;

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory 
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners 
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of 
ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the 
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and 
non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal 
audit, Company secretary or director of the Company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide 
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory 
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this 
regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have 
been complied with except Regulation 7, which will be complied with shortly.

19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 
and 36 are below: 

D.M. Textile Mills Limited

a) Audit Committee

b) HR and Remuneration Committee

  

MEETINGS FREQUENCY 
Audit Committee Five meetings were held during the 

financial year ended 30 June 2022. 
Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee 

One meeting was held during the financial 
year ended 30 June 2022. 

Names Designation held 
Mr. Amer Zeb Chairman (Independent Director)  
Mr. Suleman Khan (w.e.f. 28 April 2022
in place of Mr. Shahid Aziz)

 
 

Member (Independent Director)  

Mr. Abrar Alam Member (Non-Executive Director) 

Names Designation held  
Mr. Suleman Khan  (w.e.f. 28 April 2022 
in place of Mr. Shahid Hussain) 

Chairman (Independent Director)  

Mr. Syed Hameed Ul Haq (w.e.f. 28  
April 2022 in place of Mr. Shahid Aziz) 

Member (Non-Executive Director) 

Mr. Sami Ullah Member (Executive Director) 
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Sr. 
No.

Requirement Explanation of Non-
Compliance

Regulation
Number

1

2

3

4

5

6

19 

29 

30 

35 

5 

10(1) 

Directors' Training
It is encouraged that by 30 June 2022 all 
the directors on their Boards have 
acquired the prescribed certification 
under any director training program 
offered by institutions, local or foreign, 
that meet the criteria specified by the 
Commission and approved by it.

D u e  t o  C O V I D - 1 9  
pandemic, the Board could 
not arrange directors' 
training program for its four 
directors;

Nomination Committee
The Board may constitute a separate 
commit tee,  des ignated as the 
nomination committee, of such number 
and class of directors, as it may deem 
appropriate in its circumstances.

Currently, the Board has 
not constituted a separate 
nomination committee. 
The Board may consider to 
constitute nomination 
committee after next 
election of directors.  

Risk Management Committee
The Board may constitute the risk 
management committee, of such number 
and class of directors, as it may deem 
appropriate in its circumstances, to carry 
out a review of effectiveness of risk 
management procedures and present a 
report to the Board.

Currently, the Board has 
not constituted a risk 
management committee. 
The Board may consider to 
c o n s t i t u t e  r i s k  
management committee 
after next election of 
directors.

Disclosure of significant policies on 
website 

The Company may post key elements of 
its significant policies, brief synopsis of 
terms of reference of the Board's 
committees on its website and key 
elements of the directors' remuneration 
policy.    

Although these are well 
circulated among the 
relevant employees and 
directors, the Board may 
consider posting such 
policies and synopsis on its 
website in near future.

R e p r e s e n t a t i o n  o f  M i n o r i t y  
shareholders

The minority members as a class shall be 
facilitated by the Board to contest election 
of directors by proxy solicitation. 

N on in n nte t 
l t i n  i t

repre ent in mi r i ty  
h r h l

o e te ded to co s
e e c o a d r e c o r  

s g no
s a e o ders.

s  

Responsibilities of the Board and its 
members 

  

The Board is responsible for adoption of 
corporate governance practices by the 
Company.   

Non-mandatory provisions 
of the Regulations are 
partially   complied.

MIAN HABIB ULLAH
Chairman

Rawalpindi.
05 October 2022

D.M. Textile Mills Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S MODIFIED REVIEW REPORT

To the members of D.M. Textile Mills Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies 
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies 
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the 
Board of Directors of D.M. Textile Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 
2022 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the 
status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it 
does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A 
review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various 
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding 
of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an 
effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' 
statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the 
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures 
and risks. 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their 
review and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the 
requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have 
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party 
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We 
have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company's process for 
identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were 
undertaken at arm's length price or not. 

Following instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations were 
observed which are not stated in the Statement of Compliance:

I. The Board has not appointed whole-time Company Secretary and Chief 
Financial Officer since the resignation of the previous Company Secretary 
and Chief Financial Officer as required by the regulation 20 of the 
Regulations. Further, acting Company Secretary having additional charge of 
acting Chief Financial Officer does not fulfill the qualification criteria 
mentioned in regulation 22 of the Regulations;

Ii. No member of the Audit Committee is “financially literate” in contravention of 
regulation 27 [1(iii)] of the Regulations;
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Iii. The Company has not complied with the financial reporting and corporate 
compliance requirements of the Regulations. The financial statements do 
not give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 
June 2022 and of the profit, other comprehensive income, the changes in 
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Based on our review, except for the above instances of non-compliance, nothing has come 
to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not 
appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the 
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 
30 June 2022.

Further, we highlight below instance of non-compliance with the requirement of the 
Regulations as reflected in the paragraph reference where it is stated in the Statement of 
Compliance:

  Sr. No.    Paragraph reference                                Description

(i) 18 As stated in para 18, the Board did not comply with 
regulation 7 and no female director was appointed 
upon reconstitution of the Board.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY 
Chartered Accountants 

ISLAMABAD

Date: 05 October, 2022

UDIN: CR202210187tl31ghskr
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DIRECTORS' REPORT 

Dear Shareholders,

Composition of the Board

Male 07

Female -

Total Directors 07

Name of Directors

Independent Directors  

Non-Executive Directors  

Executive Directors  

Committees of the Board

Audit Committee

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

th
The Directors welcome you to the 65  Annual General Meeting of the Company and 
present annual audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022 along 
with Auditors' Report thereon.

Mr. Amer Zeb
Mr. Muhammad Suleman Khan

Mr. Mian Habib Ullah
Mr. Abrar Alam
Mr. Syed Hameed-ud-Haq

Mr. Sami Ullah
Rao Khalid Pervaiz

Mr. Amer Zeb Chairman
(Independent Director)

Mr. Muhammad Suleman Khan Member 
(Independent Director)

Mr. Abrar Alam Member
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Muhammad Suleman Khan Chairman
(Independent Director)

Mr. Syed Hameed Ul Haq Member
(Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Sami Ullah Member
Executive Director
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Performance: Net Profit/(Loss)

Comparative financial results are given below:

Rupees

During the year Company had net profit of Rs. 71.192 Million as compared to previous 
year net loss of Rs. (13.665) Million. The profit is due to gain on revaluation of assets.

Debt Servicing

Company has paid off entire liabilities of the financial institutions. Further, management 
is negotiating with other debt providers/suppliers so as to further reduce the liabilities of 
the Company.

Dividend

The Directors have not recommended dividend. Profit declared in the Profit & Loss 
Statement is un-realized profit due to gain on revaluation of assets.

Directors have granted specific approval for the following transactions / adjustments 
mentioned in the financial statements

Property, plant and equipment

· Cost of additions 6,466,075

· Cost of deletions 1,895,346

· Cost of assets written-off (having book value of Rs.368,776) 15,082,293

· Receivable written off 15,400

· Liabilities written off 10,000

Related party transactions as disclosed in financial statements.

Rupees

30-06-2022 

 
 

1,697,693
(1,725,900)

(28,207) 
(42,606,860) 

(5,026,336) 
128,924,942 

81,291,746 
(185,776) 

81,105,970 
(9,913,132)  
71,192,838

23.32 (4.48)
 

30-06-2021 

- 
- 
- 

(37,616,112) 
(709,936) 

29,537,357 

(8,816,898) 
(175,169) 

(8,992,067) 
(4,673,672) 

(13,665,739) 

Year  Ended on  

Revenue 
Cost of Revenue 
Gross Loss 
Administration & General Expenses 
Other Expenses 
Other Income 

Profit / (Loss) from operations  
Finance Cost 
Profit / (Loss) Before Taxation  
Taxation 
Profit / (Loss) after  taxation
Earning / (Loss) per share Basic and diluted
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Directors have also granted approval for following transactions in the financial 
statements.

a. Approval of expenditures including Capital expenditure.

b. Advances as disclosed in financial statements.

Pattern of Shareholding and Additional information as required under CCG is annexed 
to the Annual Report.

Except as disclosed in the Patron of Shareholding, during the year under review, there 
has been no trading in shares by Directors, Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer / 
Company Secretary, their spouses and minor children.

During the year, Five Board Meetings, five Audit Committee meetings and one HR and 
Remuneration committee meetings were held. The attendance of the Directors is as 
follow:

* Mr. Shahid Hussain died on 05 March 2022.

** Mr. Shahid Aziz resigned on 27 January 2022.

*** Mr. Syed Hameed Ul Haq coopted on 28 April 2022.

**** Mr. Muhammad Suleman Khan coopted on 28 April 2022.

(Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend meeting(s) due to their 
pre-occupation)
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Name of Director Number of Meetings Attended 

Board 
Meeting 

Audit 
Committee 

HR & 
Remuneration 

Committee 

* Mr. Shahid Hussain 

Mian Habib Ullah 

Mr. Sami Ullah 

** Mr. Shahid Aziz 

Mr. Amer Zeb 

Mr. Abrar Alam 

Mr. Rao Khalid Pervaiz 

*** Mr. Syed Hameed Ul Haq 

**** Mr. Muhammad Suleman Khan

 

1 - - 

5 - - 

4 - 1 

1 1 - 

5 5 - 

5 5 - 

5 - - 

1 - - 

 1 - - 



Messrs. Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K Commercial Model Town, 
Lahore are share registrar of the Company under section 195 of the companies Act, 
2017.

Future Prospects & Plans
The management is trying its level best to utilize the available recourses. Further, the 
management has positive intention and capability to revive the company.

Auditors
The retiring Auditors M/s. Riaz Ahmad & Company Chartered Accounts being eligible 
offer themselves for re-appointment.  As recommended by the Audit Committee, the 
Board propose the appointment of M/s Riaz Ahmad & Co, Chartered Accountants, as 
external auditor for the next financial year.

Remarks on Auditors' Report & Review Report to the members:

1. As for as auditors opinion regarding non-conforming with the accounting and 
reporting standards is concerned, the Board of Directors is of the opinion that 
the company is following the approved accounting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan and the annual financial statements do give a true and fair view of 
the state of company's affairs as at 30 June 2022.

2. On auditors observations regarding change of principal line of business, due 
to Corona pandemic and changes in ground realities, the Board of Directors 
have unanimously decided that the Company may primarily focus on the 
textile industry business. Existing resources and/or financing from the 
banking institutions are proposed to be used for the new proposed principal 
line of business and current line of business will also continue simultaneously 
till it is comparatively feasible. Management is trying the level best to 
negotiate with debt providers to settle amicably. Due to consistent income, 
settlements reached/to be reached with the debt providers and process for 
the revival of company, the Management has prepared the accounts on 
going concern basis and has no doubts on the Company's ability to continue 
as a going concern.

3. On auditors observation with regard to transfer of property in the name of the 
Company, it is clarified that as stated by the Auditors, the property could not 
be transferred in the name of the Company due to the want of completion of 
legal formalities. CEO filed an appeal before the Lahore High Court 
Rawalpindi Bench against the above mentioned SECP Order. The 
Honourable Court in its Order dated 26-10-2009 suspended the operation of 
the SECP Order. Keeping in view the financial position of the company and 
the legal formalities, the Board of Directors considered this issue a number of 
times and had finally decided to offer the first right of refusal to the CEO at 
fixed floor price of Rs.75 Million. As a result the company gained Rs.20.148 
Million; and this long outstanding issue was resolved with approval of the
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members of the company. Later the case was transferred to Islamabad High 
Court Islamabad (IHC). The CEO, in the case proceedings before the 
Islamabad High Court, Islamabad on 03 May 2016 submitted to transfer the 
property in the name of the Company within sixty days. The CEO moved an 
application before the IHC for placement of additional documents on the 
grounds that in the given circumstances he has surrendered subject property 
rights in favour of D.M. Textile Mills Ltd and same fact is approved by the 
Board of Directors and Members of the Company, but the property has been 
attached by the Lahore High Court Lahore in two different cases titled Bank of 
Punjab versus Bilal Fibres Limited and Bank of Punjab versus Bilal Textiles 
(Private) Limited. On 30-11-2016, IHC allowed the Application for placement 
of additional documents on record for the reasons stated therein. To 
complete the legal formalities, as per advise of our legal consultant(s), the 
Company has filed a civil suit before the Senior Civil Judge Islamabad (West) 
for specific performance of Agreement to Sell and Surrender Deed and 
Permanent Injunction.

It is further explained that Islamabad High Court vide its Order dated 16 
November 2017, decided the court case “D.M. Textile Mills Ltd Vs. Securities 
& Exchange Commission of Pakistan”. As per opinion of our legal advisor, 
main operative points of the decision are as under:- (1) Penalty on 6 Directors 
has been reduced from Rs.100,000/= each to Rs.50,000/= each {has been 
paid by the concerned Directors}(2) Directors shall make efforts to release 
the property from both court cases at Lahore High Court Lahore Bench titled 
Bilal Fibres Ltd Vs Bank of Punjab and Bilal Textiles (Pvt) Ltd Vs Bank of 
Punjab (3) After releasing the property, in terms of his statement before the 
Islamabad High Court, CEO will transfer the property into the name of the 
Company. In compliance of the Islamabad High Court Order, Objection 
Application has been filed before the Lahore High Court where Property is 
attached. Company has filed reply in Bank of Punjab application (CM 
Ind.89/2019) as well. Company has also filed an application CM-593/2022 
(In CM-89/2019) before Islamabad High Court and has requested the court 
to declare the Suit Property/House 8, Street 71, F-8/3 Islamabad as its lawful 
property as Bilal Fibres Ltd ad Bilal Textiles (Pvt) Ltd have settled their 
contentious issues and liabilities are settled with Bank of Punjab. Matter is 
pending adjudication.

4. Regarding auditors observation on material misstatement, the Board of 
Directors is of the considered view that as explained above, there is no 
material misstatement.

5. Regarding non-appointment of whole time Company Secretary & Chief 
Financial Officer and their qualification criteria; it is clarified that the Company 
is making efforts to fulfill the requirements and also advertised in the 
Newspaper. However, professionals are not willing to join the Company due 
to closure of Mills and various reasons. The requirement will be fulfilled as 
soon as possible.

Annual Report 2022

21D.M. Textile Mills Limited



6. As regards observation about members of audit committee it is clarified that 
the Board is of the view that members of existing Audit Committee have 
relevant experience. Compliance with Regulations will be made as soon as 
possible.

7. As for as non-compliance with financial reporting and corporate compliance 
requirements of the regulations is concerned, the Board of Directors is of the 
view that the company is trying it level best to follow the regulations.

8. As for as non-compliance with regulation 7 is concerned, the Company will try 
to comply with the same shortly.

Corporate Social Responsibility
The company is aware of its corporate and social responsibilities and doing its best 
within the available resources.

Director's Remuneration Policy
The Company pays remuneration to two of its Executive Directors as disclosed in Notes 
of the financial statements. No remuneration is paid to the Non-Executive and 
Independent Directors other than meeting fees.

Board Evaluation
The Board has developed a mechanism for evaluation of performance of the Board of 
Directors.

Acknowledgement
The Directors wish to place on record their acknowledgement for the cooperation 
extended by the financial institutions. Appreciation is also due to the employees of the 
company for their hard work and devoted efforts for the betterment of the company.

For and behalf of the Board of Directors

Rao Khalid PervaizSami Ullah
Chief Executive Director
Rawalpindi: October 05, 2022
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 
Company's Head Office, Westridge Industrial Area, Rawalpindi, on, October 27, 2022 at 03:00 
pm to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To confirm the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on 27 October 2021.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Annual Financial Statements of the company 
for the year ended June 30, 2022 together with Chairman's review, directors', and 
auditors' reports thereon.

3. To appoint auditors for the year 2022-23 and fix their remuneration. Retiring auditors 
M/s. Riaz Ahmad & Company being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment. Board 
of Directors, on the recommendation of Audit Committee, has proposed their re-
appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

4. Revalidation of Approval for Sale of Land & Building
In order to revalidate shareholders approval for Sale of land and building, following 
resolution will be placed before the shareholders for approval, with or without 
modification, as ordinary resolution. 

Resolved that, “Ordinary Resolution pertaining to sale of approx 07.19 Kanal land 
comprising open area and old worker quarters along with additional 24 Marla adjoining 
land as passed in the AGM held on 27 October 2021 be and is hereby revalidated for 
another one year from the date of passing of this resolution”.

Further resolved that Board of Directors of the Company or their nominee(s) as the 
board of directors, may from time to time, specially designate for the purpose, be and 
are hereby severally authorized to take any or all actions necessary or conducive for 
fulfilling any requirement or in implementation thereof including, without limitation, to 
negotiate, finalize and execute as applicable any and all contracts, instruments, power 
of attorney, notices, certificates, documents (of whatever nature and description) for or 
in connection with the aforesaid, issue any notices seek any approvals, make any filings 
and do all such acts, deeds and things as they may deem necessary and / or expedient.

5. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chairman.

Statement of Material Facts under section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 in respect of 
special business contained in Agenda Item 4 is attached.

Rawalpindi By the order of the Board
Date: 06 October, 2022
 

RAO KHALID PERVAIZ
Company Secretary (Acting)
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NOTES:

1. The members' register will remain closed from 20 October 2022 to 27 October 
2022 (both days inclusive). Transfers received at Share Registrar Office, Corplink 
(Pvt) Ltd, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model Town, Lahore by the close of 
business on 19 October 2022 will be entertained.

2. A member eligible to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another person as 
proxy to attend and vote in the meeting. Proxies in order to be effective must be 
received by the company at the registered office not later than 48 hours before the 
time for holding the meeting.

3. Shareholders are requested to immediately notify the change in address, if any.

4. CDC account holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in 
circular No.1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan:

a. For attending the meeting

i). In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the 
person whose securities are in group account and their registration details 
are uploaded as per the regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by 
showing his original computerized national identity card (CNIC) or original 
passport at the time of attending the meeting.

ii). In case of corporate entity, the board of directors' resolution/power of 
attorney with specimen signatures of the nominee shall be produced (unless 
it has been provided earlier) at the time of the Meeting

b. For appointing proxies

i). In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the 
person whose securities are in group account and their registration details are 
uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above 
requirement.

ii). The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses 
and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

iii). Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy 
shall be furnished with the proxy form.

iv). The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of 
the meeting
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5.

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2017

Revalidation of Approval for Sale of Land & Building

The Shareholders in the last Annual General Meeting held on 27 October 2021 had 
approved the sale of land measuring 07.19 Kanal comprising of open area and old worker 
quarters along with additional 24 Marla adjoining land. Due to Corona Pandemic, the 
Company could not implement members' decision in totality. Agreed sale consideration has 
been received. Approx 56 Marla land has been transferred while formalities for transfer of 
remaining land in the name of purchaser and/or his nominees are in process. The law 
specifically requires revalidation of such resolution which is not implemented within one 
year. Therefore, the members are being requested to revalidate the following Ordinary 
Resolution passed in Annual General Meeting held on 27 October 2021.

Resolved that Ordinary Resolution pertaining to sale of approx 07.19 Kanal land 
comprising open area and old worker quarters along with additional 24 Marla 
adjoining land as passed by the AGM held on 27 October 2021 be and is hereby 
revalidated for another one year from the date of passing of this resolution.

Further resolved that Board of Directors of the Company or their nominee(s) as the 
board of directors, may from time to time, specially designate for the purpose, be 
and are hereby severally authorized to take any or all actions necessary or 
conducive for fulfilling any requirement or in implementation thereof including, 
without limitation, to negotiate, finalize and execute as applicable any and all 
contracts, instruments, power of attorney, notices, certificates, documents (of 
whatever nature and description) for or in connection with the aforesaid, issue any 
notices seek any approvals, make any filings and do all such acts, deeds and things 
as they may deem necessary and / or expedient.

Financial Statements for the year ended 30-06-2022 are being uploaded on the 
website of the Company www.dmtextile.com.pk. In case a member desired a 
physical copy, he may approach the Company
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The information required under Notification SRO No. 423(1)/2018 dated 03 April 2018 for sale if 
assets being sold is as follow:

 Description  Owned/Leased Assets/Rupees  

 Detail of Assets to be sold   07.19 Kanal Land comprising open area and old
worker quarters along with additional 24 Marla
adjoining land.

 

Location

 

Factory premises, Westridge Industrial Area, 
Rawalpindi  

Acquisition date of the Asset  1958  

Cost of Land & building  Rs.4,721,085/=  

Book Value  Rs.60,650,523/=  

Revalued amount  Rs.39,559,100/=  

Approximate current market 
price/ fair value

 
Rs. 33,625,235/=
The above mentioned book value is based on 
consolidated average of the total land/building 
comprising front land and comparatively better 
building. Land proposed for sale is situated on 
extreme back end and being sold with 
independent narrow access from nearby 
Mohallah.

 

To pay off the liabilities of the Company & to 
initiate business in new proposed line of 
business. It will have no impact on the 
operational capacity.

The Sale proceeds will be used to decrease the 
financial liabilities/overdue payments & to initiate 
business in new proposed line of business

None of the Directors have any direct or indirect 
interest in the sale/disposal of the said assets 
except as shareholders of the Company

The documents pertaining to above resolutions 
are available for inspection at the registered 
office of the company on any working day upto
27 October 2022 during business hours and also 
at the time of meeting.

The proposed manner of disposal

 

Purpose of the disposal/sale & 
effects on operational capacity 
of the Company  

Quantitative and qualitative 
benefits expected to accrue to 
the members  

Nature and extent of interest, if 
any, of Directors  

Availability of relevant documents
 

Outright sale and/or through any other mean 
(advertisement for tenders, quotations, bids etc), 
to be sold in transparent manner.

Date: 06 October 2022 Rao Khalid Pervaiz

Company Secretary (Acting)

By the order of the Board
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    CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized share capital

5,000,000 (2021: 5,000,000)

ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each

 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

Reserves

Revenue reserve - unappropriated profit / (accumulated loss)

Total reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Employees' retirement benefit - gratuity

Deferred income tax liability

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Due to related parties 

Unclaimed dividend

Taxation - net

Total liabilities

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Capital reserves - surplus on revaluationof property plant and

and investment properties - net of deferred income tax

2022 2021

NOTE Rupees Rupees

50,000,000           50,000,000           

3 30,524,290           30,524,290           

577,710,000         512,148,697         

54,267,494           (17,828,765)          

631,977,494         494,319,932         

662,501,784         524,844,222         

5 3,587,502             3,999,162             

6 -                         2,907,204             

3,587,502             6,906,366             

7 100,975,226         96,038,403           

8 300,000                 20,478                   

144,947                 144,947                 

9 23,544,729           12,382,190           

124,964,902         108,586,018         

128,552,404         115,492,384         

10 -                         -                         

791,054,188         640,336,606         

4equipment
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     CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Advance against property

Long term investment

Long term deposits 

CURRENT ASSETS

Advances

Due from related party

Short term deposit

Other receivables

Short term investments

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

2022 2021

NOTE Rupees Rupees

  11 296,783,100           228,979,899  

12 449,425,000           353,301,030  

13 -                            -                   

14 6,237,960                -                   

15 9,151,434                9,151,434       

761,597,494           591,432,363  

16 3,233,200                4,580,365       

17 17,619,962             17,619,962    

18 -                            -                   

19 3,065,542                5,682,043       

20 1,284,661                9,101,239       

21 4,253,329                11,920,634    

29,456,694             48,904,243    

791,054,188           640,336,606  
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    CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR      CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

2022 2021

NOTE Rupees Rupees

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 22 -                     1,697,693      
COST OF REVENUE -                     (1,725,900)     

GROSS LOSS -                     (28,207)          

ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES 23 (42,606,860)     (37,616,112)  

OTHER EXPENSES 24 (5,026,336)        (709,936)        
(47,633,196)     (38,326,048)  

(47,633,196)     (38,354,255)  

OTHER INCOME 25 128,924,942    29,537,357    

PROFIT / (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 81,291,746       (8,816,898)     

FINANCE COST 26 (185,776)           (175,169)        

PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 81,105,970       (8,992,067)     

TAXATION 27 (9,913,132)        (4,673,672)     

PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAXATION 71,192,838       (13,665,739)  

EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED 28 23.32                 (4.48)               

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

    CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR      CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

2022  2021

Rupees Rupees

71,192,838    (13,665,739)  

166,670          206,708         -                   -                  

(48,334)           (59,945)          

118,336          146,763         

67,265,733    -                  

(919,345)         -                  

66,346,388    -                  

-                   -                  

66,464,724    146,763         

137,657,562  (13,518,976)  TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Related deferred income tax

Related deferred income tax

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the year - net of tax

PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAXATION

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Remeasurement of defined benefit plan

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

    CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR      CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

2022 2021

NOTE Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash used in operations 29 (3,819,481)   (39,959,292)  

Finance cost paid (185,776)      (175,169)       

Income tax paid (2,625,476)   (2,017,328)    

Gratuity paid (128,800)      (306,200)       -                

Net cash used in operating activities (6,759,533)   (42,457,989)  
  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 900,000       250,000         

Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets classified as held for sale -               42,500,000    

Capital expenditure on operating fixed assets (6,466,075)   (5,997,600)    

Advance received back from supplier against capital work in progress 2,500,000    -                

Interest received 2,158,303    667,781         

Net cash (used in) / from investing activities (907,772)      37,420,181    

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of lease liability -               (658,531)       

Repayment of short term borrowing - net -               (765,478)       

Net cash used in financing activities -               (1,424,009)    

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (7,667,305)   (6,461,817)    

11,920,634  18,382,451    

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 4,253,329    11,920,634    

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR



Balance as at 30 June 2020

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2021

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2022

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Incrementaldepreciation transferred from surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment to unappropriated profit - net of deferred income tax (Note 4)

Surplus on revaluation on revaluation of property plant and equipment - net of deferred 
income tax (Note 4)

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Incrementaldepreciation transferred from surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment to accumulated loss - net of deferred income tax (Note 4)

Surplus on revaluation realized on disposal of non-current assets held for sale

Total comprehensive income for the year 

-------------------- (Rupees) --------------------

30,524,290                      574,874,668                    (67,035,760)                     538,363,198                    

-                                    (387,137)                          387,137                            -                                    

-                                    (62,338,834)                     62,338,834                      -                                    

-                                    -                                    (13,665,739)                     (13,665,739)                     

-                                    -                                    146,763                            146,763                            

-                                    -                                    (13,518,976)                     (13,518,976)                     

30,524,290                      512,148,697                    (17,828,765)                     524,844,222                    

-                                    66,346,388                      (66,346,388)                     -                                    

-                                    (785,085)                          785,085                            -                                    

-                                    -                                    71,192,838                      71,192,838                      

-                                    -                                    66,464,724                      66,464,724                      

-                                    -                                    137,657,562                    137,657,562                    

30,524,290                      577,710,000                    54,267,494                      662,501,784                    

CAPITAL RESERVE - 

SURPLUS ON 

REVALUATION OF 

PROPERTY, PLANT 

AND EQUIPMENT AND 

INVESTMENT 

PROPERTIES - NET 

OF DEFERRED 

INCOME TAX

TOTAL EQUITY

REVENUE RESERVE - 

UNAPPROPRIATED 

PROFIT / 

(ACCUMULATED 

LOSS)

SHARE CAPITAL
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

    CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR      CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS
D.M. Textile Mills Limited is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 1913 (now the 
Companies Act, 2017) and listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX). The registered office and head office is situated 
at Westridge, Industrial Area, Rawalpindi. The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing of yarn and cloth, processing 
of the cloth and trade of textile products.

PSX vide Notice No. PSX/N-1222 dated 02 November 2020 placed the Company on defaulters' segment with effect from 03 
November 2020 due to non-compliance with PSX Regulations.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies 
have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated:

2.1 Basis of preparation

a) Statement of compliance 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as 
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and 
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

b) Accounting convention
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise stated in the 
respective accounting policies.

c) Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires the use of certain 
critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the 
Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience 
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The 
areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or where judgments 
were exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments
Estimates with respect to residual values, useful lives and pattern of flow of economic benefits are based on the analysis of the 
management of the Company. Further, the Company reviews the value of assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. 
Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment, 
with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Defined benefit plan 
The cost of the defined benefit plan is determined using actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation involves making 
assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the long-term nature of these plans, 
such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

Income tax
In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Company, the management takes into account the current 
income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

Allowance for expected credit losses
The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgment. The Company has 
elected to measure loss allowance for trade debts using IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' simplified approach based on the 
lifetime expected credit loss, grouped based on days overdue, and makes assumptions to allocate an overall expected credit 
loss rate for each group. These assumptions include recent sales experience and historical collection rates.

Provisions
As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations, public expectations, 
technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions are 
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previously 
recognized provision is recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless the provision was originally recognized as part of 
cost of an asset.
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IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments'  The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity 
(the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other's behalf, when it 
applies the '10 per cent' test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability. 

IFRS 16 'Leases'  The amendment partially amends Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 'Leases' by excluding the 
illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. The objective of the amendment is to resolve any 
potential confusion that might arise in lease incentives. 

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IFRS Practice Statement 
2 'Making Materiality Judgement') effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023. These amendments are 
intended to help preparers in deciding which accounting policies to disclose in their financial statements. Earlier, IAS 1 states 
that an entity shall disclose its 'significant accounting policies' in their financial statements. These amendments shall assist the 
entities to disclose their 'material accounting policies' in their financial statements.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12 'Income taxes') 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023. These amendments clarify how companies account for 
deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. 

Change in definition of Accounting Estimate (Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates 
and Errors) effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. This change replaced the definition of 
Accounting Estimate with a new definition, intended to help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting 
estimates.

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has published 'Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments 
to IFRS 3)' with amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' that update an outdated reference in IFRS 3 without 
significantly changing its requirements. Effective for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the 
beginning of annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2022. The amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its 
requirement for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The 
standard is effective for transactions in the future and therefore would not have an impact on past financial statements.

The above amendments and improvements are likely to have no significant impact on the financial statements.

g) Standards and amendments to approved published standards that are not yet effective and not considered relevant 
to the Company
There are other standards and amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on 
or after 01 July 2021 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company's financial 
statements and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

2.2 Employees' retirement benefit - Gratuity\
The Company operates unfunded unapproved gratuity scheme for all of its permanent employees who have completed the 
minimum qualifying period of service as defined in the scheme. The Company's obligation in respect of the defined benefit plan 
is calculated by estimating the present value of future benefit that employees have earned in return of this service in the current 
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The defined obligation is calculated annually by an 
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The latest valuation was carried out as at 30 June 2022 details of 
which are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.

The interest is calculated by applying discount rate to the net balance of defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets 
(if any). The cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement for profit or loss.

Past service cost are recognized immediately in the statement for profit or loss.

Remeasurement gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive income.

2.3 Taxation

Current
Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for 
taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit 
for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax 
made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred
Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from differences between 
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and 
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. 
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Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on tax rates 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of 
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this 
case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.4 Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates (the functional currency). The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, 
which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

2.5 Foreign currency transactions and translation
All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the 
reporting date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of 
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 
translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are charged or 
credited to statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a 
foreign currency are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-monetary assets 
and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are stated at fair value are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates 
prevailing at the date when fair values are determined.

2.6 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations and a reliable estimate of 
the amount can be made.

2.7 Property, plant, equipment and depreciation

Operating fixed assets
Operating fixed assets except freehold land are stated at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses (if any). Cost of operating fixed assets consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to erection / 
construction period of qualifying assets and other directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to working condition. Freehold 
land is stated at revalued amount less any identified impairment loss. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it 
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the period in 
which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of operating fixed assets are recognized, in other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in revaluation surplus in shareholders' equity. To the extent that increase reverses a decrease 
previously recognized in the statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent 
of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss.

Depreciation
Depreciation on operating fixed assets is charged to statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance method so as to 
write off the cost / depreciable amount of the asset over their estimated useful lives at the rates given in Note 11.1. The 
depreciation on additions is charged from the date the asset is available for use and on deletion up to the date when asset is 
de-recognized. The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed by the management, at each financial year end and 
adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

De-recognition
An item of operating fixed assets is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its 
use or disposal.  Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in the statement of profit or loss in the year 
the asset is de-recognized.

Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment losses, if any. All expenditure connected with specific 
assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to 
operating fixed assets as and when these are available for use.

2.8 Investment properties
Land and buildings held for capital appreciation or to earn rental income are classified as investment properties. Investment 
properties are carried at fair value which is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the 
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. The valuation of the properties is carried out with sufficient regularity.

Gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of investment properties is recognized in the statement of profit or loss for 
the year in which it arises.
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2.9 IFRS 16 “Leases”

Right-of-use-assets
A right-of-use-asset is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which 
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for, as applicable, any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date net of any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred, and, except where included in the 
cost of inventories, an estimate of costs expected to be incurred for dismantling and removing the underlying asset, and 
restoring the site or asset.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful life 
of the asset, whichever is the shorter. Where the Company expects to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the 
lease term, the depreciation is charged over its estimated useful life. Right-of use assets are subject to impairment or adjusted 
for any re-measurement of lease liabilities.

The Company has elected not to recognize a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability for short-term leases with 
terms of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. Lease payments on these assets are charged to income as 
incurred.

Lease liabilities
A lease liability is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially recognized at the present 
value of the lease payments to be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if 
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments comprise of fixed 
payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, amounts expected 
to be paid under residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option when the exercise of the option is reasonably 
certain to occur, and any anticipated termination penalties. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a 
rate are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amounts are re-measured if 
there is a change in the following: future lease payments arising from a change in an index or a rate used; residual guarantee; 
lease term; certainty of a purchase option and termination penalties. When a lease liability is re-measured, an adjustment is 
made to the corresponding right-of-use asset, or to statement of profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is 
fully written down.

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

a) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

· those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or 
loss), and

· those to be measured at amortized cost

The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive 
income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For 
investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time 
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The 
Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

b) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at 
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows 
are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and 
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its 
debt instruments:
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Amortized cost
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely 
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets is 
included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is 
recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in other income / (other expenses) together with foreign exchange 
gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss. 

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the 
assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the 
carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment losses 
(and reversal of impairment losses), interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized 
in profit or loss. When the financial asset is de-recognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in 
other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in other income / (other 
expenses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate 
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other income/ (other expenses) and impairment 
losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt 
instrument that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognized in profit or loss and presented net within other 
income / (other expenses) in the period in which it arises. 

Equity instruments
The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value for financial instruments quoted in an active 
market, the fair value corresponds to a market price (level 1). For financial instruments that are not quoted in an active 
market, the fair value is determined using valuation techniques including reference to recent arm's length market 
transactions or transactions involving financial instruments which are substantially the same (level 2), or discounted cash 
flow analysis including, to the greatest possible extent, assumptions consistent with observable market data (level 3). 

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Where the Company's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in 
other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. 
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVTOCI are not reported 
separately from other changes in fair value. 

Fair value through profit or loss
Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in other income / 
(other expenses) in the statement of profit or loss as applicable. 

Dividends from such investments continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other income when the Company's right to 
receive payments is established.

2.11 Financial liabilities - classification and measurement 
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is 
classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are 
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other 
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and 
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also 
included in profit or loss.

2.12 Impairment of financial assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on:
-  Financial assets measured at amortized cost;
-  Debt investments measured at FVOCI; and
-  Contract assets.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 
12-month ECLs:

- Debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- Other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default   occurring over the expected life of 
the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting 
date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).
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When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when 
estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without 
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's 
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past due for a 
reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a 
financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum 
period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

The Company has elected to measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated 
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Company has established a matrix that is based on the Company's historical credit loss 
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. When determining 
whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the 
Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This 
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and 
informed credit assessment including forward-looking information.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering 
of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the 
timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no 
significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to 
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt securities at 
FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
- a breach of contract such as a default;
- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise;
- it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

2.13 De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities\

a) Financial assets
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers 
the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 
and does not retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in such de-recognized financial assets that is created or 
retained by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

b) Financial liabilities
The Company derecognizes a financial liability (or a part of financial liability) from its statement of financial position when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

2.14 Off-setting of financial instruments
Assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there is a legal 
enforceable right to set off and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the 
liabilities simultaneously.

2.15 Inventories
Inventories, except for stock in transit and waste stock, are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined 
as follows:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools
Useable stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued principally at moving average cost, while items considered obsolete are 
carried at nil value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

Stock-in-trade
Cost of raw material, work-in-process and finished goods is determined as follows:
(i) For raw materials: Weighted average basis.
(ii) For work-in-process and finished goods: Average manufacturing cost including a portion of production 

overheads.
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Materials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon. Waste stock is valued at net 
realizable value.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make a sale.

2.16 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method, less any allowance for expected credit losses. Trade receivables generally do not include amounts over due 
by 365 days.

The Company has applied the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected loss 
allowance. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on days overdue.

Other receivables are recognized at amortized cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

2.17 Borrowings
Financing and borrowings are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently stated at amortized cost. Any difference 
between the proceeds and the redemption value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the 
borrowings using the effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowing cost
Interest, mark-up and other charges on long-term finances are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of respective 
qualifying assets acquired out of the proceeds of such long-term finances. All other interest, mark-up and other charges are 
recognized in statement of profit or loss.

2.19 Trade and other payables
Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are initially recognized at fair value, which is normally the transaction cost.

2.20 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current, saving and deposit accounts and other short 
term highly liquid instruments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant 
risk of changes in values.

2.21 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as share capital. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in 
equity as a deduction, net of tax.

2.22 Revenue from contracts with customers
i) Revenue recognition 

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods, 
which is generally at the time of delivery.

Interest
Interest income is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating 
the amortized cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective 
interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the 
financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Rental income
Rent revenue from investment properties is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease 
incentives granted are recognized as part of the rental revenue. Contingent rentals are recognized as income in the 
period when earned.

Dividend
Dividend on equity investments is recognized when right to receive the dividend is established.

Other revenue
Other revenue is recognized when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established.

ii) Contract assets
Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring goods to a customer 
before the customer pays its consideration or before payment is due. Contract assets are treated as financial assets for 
impairment purposes.

iii) Customer acquisition costs
Customer acquisition costs are capitalized as an asset where such costs are incremental to obtaining a contract with a 
customer and are expected to be recovered. Customer acquisition costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the contract.
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Costs to obtain a contract that would have been incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained or which are not 
otherwise recoverable from a customer are expensed as incurred to profit or loss. Incremental costs of obtaining a 
contract where the contract term is less than one year is immediately expensed to profit or loss.

iv) Customer fulfillment costs
Customer fulfillment costs are capitalized as an asset when all the following are met: (i) the costs relate directly to the 
contract or specifically identifiable proposed contract; (ii) the costs generate or enhance resources of the Company that 
will be used to satisfy future performance obligations; and (iii) the costs are expected to be recovered. Customer 
fulfillment costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract.

v) Right of return assets
Right of return assets represents the right to recover inventory sold to customers and is based on an estimate of 
customers who may exercise their right to return the goods and claim a refund. Such rights are measured at the value at 
which the inventory was previously carried prior to sale, less expected recovery costs and any impairment.

vi) Contract liabilities
Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has received 
consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods, a contract 
liability is recognized when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company 
performs its performance obligations under the contract.

vii) Refund liabilities
Refund liabilities are recognized where the Company receives consideration from a customer and expects to refund 
some, or all, of that consideration to the customer. A refund liability is measured at the amount of consideration received 
or receivable for which the Company does not expect to be entitled and is updated at the end of each reporting period for 
changes in circumstances. Historical data is used across product lines to estimate such returns at the time of sale based 
on an expected value methodology.

2.23 Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value. Any directly attributable transaction costs are recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss as incurred. They are subsequently remeasured at fair value on regular basis and at each reporting date as a 
minimum, with all their gains and losses, realized and unrealized, recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

2.24 Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there 
is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such asset is estimated. An impairment 
loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognized in statement of profit or loss except for impairment loss on revalued assets, which is adjusted against the related 
revaluation surplus to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the surplus on revaluation of that asset. 

2.25 Dividend and other appropriations
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company's financial statements in the 
period in which the dividends are declared and other appropriations are recognized in the period in which these are approved 
by the Board of Directors.

2.26 Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through sale transaction 
rather than continuous use. These are measured at lower of carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell.

2.27 Earnings per share
The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the year.

2.28 Contingent assets
Contingent assets are disclosed when the Company has a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence 
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control 
of the Company. Contingent assets are not recognized until their realization becomes certain.

2.29 Contingent liabilities
Contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events whose existence will 
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company. Contingent liabilities are not recognized, only disclosed, unless the possibility of a future outflow of resources is 
considered remote. In the event that the outflow of resources associated with a contingent liability is assessed as probable, 
and if the size of the outflow can be reliably estimated, a provision is recognized in the financial statements.
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3 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

2021 2022 2021

NOTE Rupees Rupees

2,952,429    29,524,290             29,524,290             

100,000       1,000,000               1,000,000               

3,052,429    30,524,290             30,524,290             

4

Balance as at 01 July 203,740,000           266,465,971           

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 67,265,733             -                           

Related deferred income tax liability 6.1 (919,345)                 -                           

66,346,388             -                           

-                           (63,362,294)            

Related deferred income tax liability -                           1,023,460               

-                           (62,338,834)            

(1,105,753)              (545,264)                 

Related deferred income tax liability 6.1 320,668                   158,127                   

(785,085)                 (387,137)                 

Balance as at 30 June 269,301,303           203,740,000           

- Investment properties

Revaluation surplus 313,858,182           313,858,182           

Related deferred income tax liability 6 (5,449,485)              (5,449,485)              

308,408,697           308,408,697           

577,710,000           512,148,697           

Transferred to unappropriated profit / (accumulated loss) in respect of 

incremental depreciation charged during the year

- Property, plant and equipment

(Number of shares)

3,052,429             

Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each 

fully paid in cash

2,952,429             

100,000                

2022

CAPITAL RESERVE - SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - NET

OF DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each 

issued as fully paid bonus shares

Surplus on revaluation realized on disposal of non-current assets held  for 

sale

5 EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT BENEFIT - GRATUITY

5.1 Liability recognized in the statement of financial position

Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation 5.2 11,189,609             10,911,469             

Benefits due but not paid shown under current liabilities 7 (7,602,107)              (6,912,307)              

5.3 3,587,502               3,999,162               

5.2

At the beginning of the year 10,911,469             10,817,900             

Charge for the year 573,610                   606,477                   

Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income (166,670)                 (206,708)                 

Benefit paid during the year (128,800)                 (306,200)                 

11,189,609             10,911,469             

5.3 Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

At the beginning of the year 3,999,162               3,816,593               

Benefits due but not paid 6,912,307               7,001,307               

Service cost 214,624                   291,298                   

Interest cost for the year 358,986                   315,179                   

Benefit paid during the year (128,800)                 (306,200)                 

Charge to other comprehensive income (166,670)                 (206,708)                 

Benefits due but not paid (7,602,107)              (6,912,307)              

At the end of the year 3,587,502               3,999,162               

The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at 30 June 2022, using the projected unit credit method. The amounts recognized in

financial statements are determined as follows:

Movement in liability recognized in the statement of financial

position
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2022

NOTE Rupees

2021

Rupees

5.4 Amounts recognized in statement of profit or loss

Current service cost 214,624                   291,298                   

Interest cost for the year 358,986                   315,179                   

573,610                   606,477                   

5.5 Amount recognized in statement of comprehensive income

Actuarial gain due to experience adjustments (166,670)                 (206,708)                 

5.6 Allocation of charge for the year

Administrative and general expenses 23.1 573,610                   606,477                   

5.7 Principal actuarial assumptions used 

Discount rate 13.25% 10.00%

Expected rate of increase in salary 12.25% 9.00%

Average expected remaining working life of employees 8 Years 8 Years

Average duration of liability 8 Years 8 Years

Mortality rate SLIC (2001-05) SLIC (2001-05)

5.8 Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate + 1 % 3,313,039               3,693,204               

Discount rate  - 1 % 3,884,789               4,330,562               

Salary increase rate + 1 % 3,884,703               4,330,466               

Salary increase rate - 1 % 3,312,998               3,693,159               

5.10 The expected gratuity expense for next financial year is: Rupees

Current service cost 263,721                   

Interest cost for the year 475,344                   

739,065                   

5.11 Expected benefit payments for the next 5 years and beyond

FY 2023 271,362                   

FY 2024 353,435                   

FY 2025 428,628                   

FY 2026 735,164                   

FY 2027 904,271                   

FY 2028 onwards 8,937,516               

5.12 Risks associated with the gratuity scheme

The sensitivity analysis is prepared using same computation model and assumptions as used to determine defined benefit obligation

based on projected unit credit method. The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to assumption set out above. The

principal actuarial assumptions used to estimate the defined benefit obligations at the reporting date had fluctuatedby +1 bps with our

other variables held constant, the present value of the defined benefit obligations as at 30 June 2022 would have been as follows.

The gratuity scheme is an unfundedscheme. There is no minimum funding requirement for a gratuity scheme. The gratuity benefit liability

reflected in the Company accounts provides a reasonable security of the accrued rights because it is likely that the accrued gratuity

benefits could be considered as high priority debt in case of insolvency of the sponsor.

5.9 Amounts for the current and previous four years:

2021 2020 20192022 2018

-------------------------------------------------- R u p e e s --------------------------------------------------

11,189,609   10,911,469     10,817,900     10,808,751             10,611,500             

(7,602,107)    (6,912,307)      (7,001,307)      (7,453,107)              (7,481,707)              

3,587,502     3,999,162        3,816,593        3,355,644               3,129,793               

(166,670)       (206,708)          139,031           (237,163)                 392,424                   

Present value of defined benefit 

obligation

Benefits due but not paid shown 

under current liabilities

Remeasurement (gain) / loss on

obligation
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6.2 Deductible temporary differences are considered to the extent that the realization of related tax benefits is probable from reversal of

existing taxable temporary differences and future taxable profits.

Salary risk 

Withdrawal rate risk

Mortality rate risk

2022 2021

NOTE Rupees Rupees

6 DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY

 

Accelerated tax depreciation 5,387,170               3,187,809               

3,127,104               2,528,427               

4 5,449,485               5,449,485               

13,963,759             11,165,721             

Provision for gratuity (3,244,987)              (3,164,326)              

Provision against doubtful advances (40,168)                    (40,168)                    

Provision against doubtful deposits:

- Long term deposits (4,434,970)              (4,434,970)              

- Short term deposit (580,000)                 (580,000)                 

Provision against sales tax refundable (1,127,350)              -                           

Provision against doubtful export rebate and claims (39,053)                    (39,053)                    

(9,466,528)              (8,258,517)              

4,497,231               2,907,204               

Deferred income tax asset recognized on unused tax losses (4,497,231)              -                           

6.1 -                           2,907,204               

6.1 Movement in deferred income tax balances is as follows:

At beginning of the year 2,907,204               4,517,107               

Recognized in statement of profit or loss:

Accelerated tax depreciation on fixed assets 2,199,361               (718,608)                 

4 (320,668)                 (1,181,586)              

Provision for gratuity (128,995)                 (87,080)                    

Lease liability -                           190,974                   

Provision against doubtful export rebate and claims (1,127,350)              -                           

Unused tax losses (4,497,231)              -                           

Allowance for expected credit losses -                           126,452                   

27 (3,874,883)              (1,669,848)              

Recognized in statement of comprehensive income:

Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 48,334                     59,945                     

4 919,345                   -                           

967,679                   59,945                     

-                           2,907,204               

Surplus on revaluation of: 

- Property, plant and equipment 

Deferred income tax liability on taxable temporary 

differences in respect of:

Deferred income tax asset on deductible 

temporary differences in respect of:

This comprises of following:

The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of participants during

employment. An improvement in the mortality rates of the participants may increase / decrease the liability and vice versa depending on the 

age-service distribution of the exiting employees.

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference to the futuresalaries of participants. As such, an increase in the

salary of the participants will increase the liability and vice versa.

- Investment properties

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the withdrawal rate of participants. As

such, an increase in the withdrawal rate may increase / decrease the liability and vice versa depending on the age-service distribution of

the exiting employees.

Interest rate risk:

The present valueof the defined benefit liability is calculatedusing a discount rate. A decrease in discount rate will increase the liability and

vice versa.
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6.3

Accounting year 

in which tax 

losses will expire

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

20282022

                                             (8,391,211)

As at 30 June 2022, the Company has aggregated deferred income tax asset amounting to Rupees 15.70 million (2021: Rupees 20.01

million) out of which deferred income tax asset amounting to Rupees 4.50 million (2021: Rupees Nil) has been recognized and remaining

balance of Rupees 11.20 million (2021: Rupees 20.01 million) remains unrecognized in these financial statements due to uncertaintyin

availability of sufficient future taxable profits. Tax losses excluding unabsorbed tax depreciation available for carry forward under the

Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 would expire as follows:

                                           (20,988,152)

Accounting year to which the 

tax losses relates

2017

2018

2019

2020

------------ Rupees ------------

Amount of unused tax losses 

excluding unabsorbed tax 

depreciation

                                                             -   

                                                      4,281 

                                                  583,896 

              (44,405,510)

2021

                                           (15,614,324)

6.4

2021

NOTE

2022

Rupees Rupees

7 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 45,235,143

             

46,537,779

             

Contract liabilities - unsecured 7.1 6,329,433

               

6,673,156

               

Payable to Rawalpindi Cantonment Board against property tax 20,332,508

             

16,258,832

             

Duties and taxes 3,307,728

               

3,309,718

               

Accrued liabilities 4,904,710

               

3,315,579

               

Workers' welfare fund 1,016,817

               

1,016,817

               

Withholding income tax payable 5,855,575

               

5,802,615

               

Employees' retirement benefit due but not paid 5.1 7,602,107

               

6,912,307

               

Security deposits against rent 7.2 6,391,205

               

6,211,600

               

100,975,226

           

96,038,403

             

7.1 Contract liabilities - unsecured

Advance rental income 7.1.1 4,586,409

               

4,930,132

               

Advance from customers 1,743,024

               

1,743,024

               

6,329,433

               

6,673,156

               

7.1.1

7.2

8 DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 

Mian Habib Ullah, Director

Balance as at 01 July 20,478

                     

765,478

                   

Received during the year 979,522

                   

1,400,000

               

Paid during the year (1,000,000)

              

(2,145,000)

              

Balance as at 30 June -

                           

20,478

                     

Mian Sami Ullah, Chief Executive Officer

Balance as at 01 July -

                           

-

                           

Received during the year 300,000

                   

-

                           

Balance as at 30 June 300,000

                   

-

                           

300,000

                   

20,478

                     

This represents security deposits received from tenants of the Company. These deposits have not been kept in separate bank accounts

and tenants have given the Company a right to utilize these deposits in ordinary course of business.

This represents interest free and unsecuredloan obtained by the Company from followingrelated parties to meet day to day expenses and

is payable on demand. Reconciliation of balances is as follows:

It represents advance against rental income received from tenants. During the year, the Company recognized revenue amounting to

Rupees 4,930,132 (2021: Rupees 4,529,988) out of advance rental income as at 01 July 2021.

Unabsorbed tax depreciation amounting to Rupees 9.73 million (2021: Rupees 8.10 million) is available for adjustment for indefinite

period.
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2022 2021
NOTE Rupees Rupees

9 TAXATION - NET

Balance as at 01 July 12,382,190             8,055,998               

Add: Provision for the year 27 13,788,015             6,343,520               

Less: Tax deducted at source / paid during the year (2,625,476)              (2,017,328)              

Balance as at 30 June 23,544,729             12,382,190             

10 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

10.1 Contingencies

(a)

(b)

(C)

(d)

(e)

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees

10.2 Commitments Nil Nil

On 26 January 2006, Collector of Customs (Appraisement) directed the Company to pay duties and taxes amounting to Rupees
19.41 million against import of textile machineryduring 2001 to 2004. The Company applied to Member Legal, Federal Board of
Revenue,Islamabad to allow relief by paymentof custom duty@ 5% of dutiable valueof machineryamountingto Rupees 3.49 million
under amnesty scheme announcedby the Federal Government.Federal Board of Revenueallowed relief to the Company under the
amnesty scheme. The Company paid Rupees 3.49 million to the Custom Department. However, being aggrieved, Collector of
Custom filed an appeal before the Customs, Excise and Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal, whichwas decided in favor of the Company.
Collector of Customs (Appraisement) filed special custom reference before Sindh High Court, Karachi against the order of Customs,
Excise and Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal where the case is still pending. No provision of the remaining amount of Rupees 15.92
million has been made in these financial statements as the Company, based on advice of legal advisor, is hopeful for favorable
outcome.

Guaranteeof Rupees 7.142 million (2021: Rupees 7.142 million) has been given by the banks of the Company to IslamabadElectric
Supply Company against sanction of load.

The Company filed an appeal on 04 April 2011, before Lahore High Court, Rawalpindi Bench, against demand of property tax
amounting to Rupees 5.51 million raised by InspectorMilitary Lands and Cantonments,Rawalpindi. Being aggrieved on decision of
Lahore High Court, Rawalpindi Bench, the Company filed appeal before the Supreme Court of Pakistan, whereby, the case has
been remanded back to Lahore High Court, Rawalpindi Bench. No provision has been made in these financial statements as the
Company is hopeful for favorable outcome.

For tax year 2014, assessment order dated 26 April 2016 was passed undersection 122(1) read with section 122(9) of the Income
Tax Ordinance,2001 by the Deputy Commissioner InlandRevenue,wherebythe demand of tax amountingto Rupees 3.8 million was
created. The Company filed an appeal before Commissioner InlandRevenue(Appeals) (CIR(A)) and the case was decided against
the Company throughorder dated 19 October 2016. However, the Company filed appeal against the decision of CIR(A) before the
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) who annulled the order of CIR(A) through judgment dated 3 October 2017. Being
aggrieved, the department filed a writ petition against the judgmentof ATIR before the Honorable IslamabadHigh Court, Islamabad
which is pending adjudication. No provision has been made in these financial statements as the Company is hoping a favorable
outcome.

On 01 February 2011, the Company filed an appeal before Lahore High Court, Rawalpindi Bench against the recovery of electricity
duty amounting to Rupees 19.07 million on self generation charged by Electric Inspector Islamabad Region. The Court decided on
10 November 2016 that matter is pending before the Supreme Court of Pakistan. WAPDA will not recover any amount from the
petitioner till decision of the HonourableSupreme Court of Pakistan. Pending the outcome of this case no provision has been made
in these financial statements as the Company, based on advice of legal advisor, is hopeful for favorable outcome.
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2022 2021

NOTE Rupees Rupees

11.5 Capital work in progress

As on 01 July 4,000,000               -                           

Additions during the year 11.5.1 -                           4,000,000               

Transfer to operating fixed assets 11.1 (1,500,000)              -                           

Advance received back during the year (2,500,000)              

As on 30 June -                           4,000,000               

11.5.1 It represents advance to suppliers against:

Vehicles -                           1,500,000               

Plant and machinery -                           2,500,000               

-                           4,000,000               

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

------------------------------ Rupees ------------------------------

Year ended 30 June 2022

Fair value as at 01 July 2021 321,188,400   32,112,630             353,301,030           

Fair value gain 90,591,600     5,532,370               96,123,970             

Fair value as at 30 June 2022 411,780,000   37,645,000             449,425,000           

Year ended 30 June 2021

Fair value as at 01 July 2020 321,188,400   32,112,630             353,301,030           

Fair value gain -                    -                           -                           

Fair value as at 30 June 2021 321,188,400   32,112,630             353,301,030           

12.1

Rupees

           350,013,000 

              31,998,250 

           382,011,250 

Land

The fair value of investment properties comprising land and buildings situated at Westridge, Industrial Area, Rawalpindi have been

determined by an independent valuer, Danish Enterprises as at 30 June 2022. 

Buildings

Forced sale value of these properties as at 30 June 2022 was: 

Land Building Total

12.2 Particulars of investment properties are as follows:

Covered Area (Sqr 

feet)

Total Area marla

Westridge, Industrial Area, Rawalpindi -                           823.56                     

Westridge, Industrial Area, Rawalpindi 188,231 -                           

188,231 823.56                     

Buildings

Description

Land

Address

11.2 The revaluation of freehold land, non-factory buildings, electric installations, furniture, fixtures, and office equipment and vehicles was

carried on 30 June 2022 by an independent valuerMessrs. Danish Enterprises and Constructionon the basis of depreciated replacement

value method.  Had there been no revaluation book value of revalued property, plant and equipment would have been as follows:

11.4 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land & building) in the name of the Company are as follows:

 Covered Area

 (Sqr feet) 

 Total Area 

(marlas) 

Westridge, Industrial Area, Rawalpindi Land -                           378.01                     

Westridge, Industrial Area, Rawalpindi Residential and offices 45,813                     168.43                     

45,813                     546.44                     

Usage of immovable propertyLocation

Freehold land 36,819                     36,819                     

Non-factory buildings 1,774,501               1,940,356               

Factory equipment -                           409,054                   

Electric installations 1,568,098               1,742,331               

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 200,932                   223,258                   

Vehicles 8,441,138               2,734,589               

12,021,488             7,086,407               

11.3

Rupees

Freehold land            232,237,000 

Non-factory buildings                 7,789,230 

Electric installations                 2,210,000 

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment                    126,905 

Vehicles                 9,902,500 

30 June 2022

30 June 2022

Description

Forced sale value of property, plant and equipment is given below: 

Valuation date

30 June 2022

30 June 2022

30 June 2022
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13 ADVANCE AGAINST PROPERTY

The IHC vide its order dated 16 November2017, reduced the penalty from Rupees 100,000 to Rupees 50,000 to be paid by each director

of the Company within the period of thirty days.

The Bank of Punjab filed an appeal before the IslamabadHigh Court, Islamabad to set-aside orders dated 03 May 2016 and 16 November

2017. The matter is pending adjudication.

On 24 May 2022, the Company filed an application before Islamabad High Court, Islamabad praying that The Bank of Punjab and Bilal

Fibers Limited and Bilal Textiles (Private) Limited have entered into a settlement agreements, hence, the said property may please be

declared as lawful property of D.M. Textile Mills Limited. The matter is pending adjudication.

The Company filed a suit before the court of Civil Judge 1st Class (West), Islamabad dated 17 October 2017 against the C.E.O. while

making Securities and ExchangeCommission of Pakistan and Capital DevelopmentAuthorityparties to the case for directions to transfer

the property in the name of the Company. Civil Judge 1st Class (West), Islamabad, vide order dated 28 July 2021 accepted the Company's 

appeal and directed to submit evidence. The matter is pending adjudication.

An amount of Rupees 51.150 million was given by the Company as advance against purchase of property. The property could not be

transferred in the Company's name due to the want of completion of legal formalities. With reference to this advance, the Director

(Enforcement)of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide his Order dated 29 November 2007 imposed a penalty

of Rupees 100,000 on each of the director except one (nominee NIT)of the Company for contraventionof section 196(2j) of the repealed

Companies Ordinance, 1984. Further directions were given under section 473 for transferring the property in the name of the Company

within thirty days from the Order date. The Chief Executive Officer (C.E.O) of the Company filed a revision application with the Appellate

Bench of SECP under section 484 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 against this Order on 10 January 2008, where the

Appellate Bench decided not to interfere with the impugned order. 

The Board of Directors in the meeting held on 23 April 2014, after getting valuationat forced sale value of Rupees 72.007 million of said

property from NAKMS Associates (Private) Limited, resolved that the right in property along with fixtures and fittings to be offered to the

C.E.O on the basis of "first right of refusal" at the fixed floor price of Rupees 75.00 million. The Board furtherdecided that an amount of

Rupees 48.570 million be adjusted from interest free loan given by C.E.O and his close familymembers to the Company and the balance

amountto be paid in three equal annualinstalments of Rupees 8.810 million commencing from 01 May 2015. Accordingly, agreement was

made between the Company and the C.E.O under the directions given by the Board of Directors of the Company.

The C.E.O also filed an appeal under section 485 of the repealed Companies Ordinance,1984 read with section 34 of the Securities and

Exchange Commission of Pakistan Act, 1997 before the Lahore High Court, Rawalpindi Bench whereby stay order was granted to

suspend the operation of above said impugned order. The Lahore High Court, Rawalpindi Bench, in its interim order dated 06 February

2015, granted adjournmentwith the directions not to transfer / alienate the property / undertaking of the Company meanwhile.Further, the

court, through its order dated 09 December 2015 transferred the case to Islamabad High Court (IHC), Islamabad.

However, the C.E.O in the case proceedings before the Islamabad High Court (IHC),Islamabad on 03 May 2016 has submitted to transfer

the property in the name of the Company within sixty days there from. The C.E.O filed a petition before the Islamabad High Court to seek

relief on the grounds that the said property has already been attached in the cases titled The Bank of Punjab versus Bilal Fibers Limited

and The Bank of Punjab versus Bilal Textiles (Private) Limited wherein the C.E.O was a guarantor. Meanwhile,the Board of directors and

the shareholders in their meetings held on 09 October 2016 and 31 October 2016 respectivelyresolved to reverse the transaction of sale

of property to C.E.O, subject to completion of legal formalities and in accordance with rules / law / procedures.

The Company also filed an appeal before the Lahore High Court, Lahore Bench in May 2018 for detachment of the property, so that

property can be transferred in the name of the Company, which is pending adjudication.

The Securities and ExchangeCommission of Pakistan filed an appeal before the IHC, Islamabad,dated 13 September 2018 for execution

of IHC decision dated 16 November 2017 to appoint statutoryauditors to conduct a special audit to calculate the amount of profit which

could have been earned on the amountof Rupees 51.150 million, if invested with anyscheduled bank on daily product basis in the relevant

period, and further requested the IHC to send notice to Lahore High Court, Lahore, for release of the property. The matter is pending

adjudication.

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees

17,369,200             21,624,900             

5,598,340               17,501,600             

22,967,540             39,126,500             

Upto one year

After one year but not more than 3 years

12.4 Leasing arrangement 

The Company as a lessor has entered into operating leases on its investmentproperties portfolio consisting of Buildings (i.e. Godowns)

These leases have terms between 1 to 3 years. All lease arrangements include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on

an annualbasis according to prevailing market conditions. Futureminimumrentals receivable undernon-cancelableoperating leases as at

30 June are as follows:

12.3 Rental income

The rental income in respect of these properties amounting to Rupees 31.23 million (2021: Rupees 27.34 million) has been recognized in

the statement of profit or loss and included in 'other income'. 



2021

NOTE

2022

Rupees Rupees

14 LONG TERM INVESTMENT

Amortized cost

Fixed deposit certificate 14.1 1,142,000               1,142,000               

Term deposit receipts 14.1 6,001,045               6,001,045               

Accrued markup 236,915                   1,827,706               

6,237,960               7,828,751               

Less: Current portion shown under current assets 20 -                           (7,828,751)              

6,237,960               -                           

14.1

15 LONG TERM DEPOSITS 

Considered good 15.1                 9,151,434                 9,151,434 

Considered doubtful 15.2               15,293,000               15,293,000 

              24,444,434               24,444,434 

Less: Provision against doubtful deposit (15,293,000)            (15,293,000)            

9,151,434               9,151,434               

15.1

15.2

16 ADVANCES

Unsecured

Advance to employees against:

- salaries - interest free 16.1 43,000                     37,000                     

- expenses 5,000                       5,000                       

48,000                     42,000                     

Advance to suppliers 3,185,200               4,538,365               

3,233,200               4,580,365               

Advances to employees against salaries 25,110                     25,110                     

Advances to suppliers 113,402                   113,402                   

138,512                   138,512                   

Less: Provision against doubtful advances (138,512)                 (138,512)                 

3,233,200               4,580,365               

16.1

17 DUE FROM RELATED PARTY

18 SHORT TERM DEPOSIT

Short term deposit 18.1 2,000,000               2,000,000               

Less: Provision against doubtful deposit (2,000,000)              (2,000,000)              

-                           -                           

Considered doubtful:

These include deposits with various utilitycompanies and others.These are not being carried at amortized cost as required by IFRS-9 as it

will have an immaterial impact and thus carried at historical cost.

These represent short term advances given to employees as per companies policy for general purpose. These are interest free and not

carried at amortized cost as the impact was considered immaterial.

These represent term deposit receipts of Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited for the period of five years ending in February 2027, carrying

effective interest rate ranging from 7.00% to 10.75% (2021: 6.25% to 7.00%) per annum. These are under lien with the bank against

guarantee given on behalf of the Company.

Sui NorthernGas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) Islamabad demanded arrears of Rupees 10.405 million for the period from November2006

to November 2007 due to doubt on accuracy of meter. The Company filed a case in the Court of Senior Civil Judge Islamabad on 18

December 2007. SNGPL encashed the bank guaranteeamounting to Rupees 15.293 million issued to it by NIB Bank Limited on behalf of

the Company. However, Civil Judge Islamabad rejected SNGPL claim for excessive billing vide order dated 18 December 2012. SNGPL

filed appeal before Additional District and Session Judge, Islamabad.Additional District and Session Judge, Islamabadvide order dated

18 April 2018 rejected the plaint by stating that an alternateremedy is available to the Company to agitate its grievances before the Oil and

Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA) under section 11 of the OGRA Ordinance, 2002. The Company filed an application before OGRA.

OGRA vide letter No. OGRA-8(2) C-2495/2021 dated 05 May 2021 directed SNGPL to submit a response within 15 days which is still

pending.

It represents receivable from C.E.O against sale of property as more fullyexplained in Note 13. The maximumamount due from C.E.O at

the end of any month during the year was Rupees 17.62 million (2021: Rupees 17.62 million) and is outstanding since 2016. 

Considered good:
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22 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Local sales -                           2,037,232               

Less: sales tax -                           (339,539)                 

-                           1,697,693               

18.1       It represents advance given to Messrs. Fauji Foundation for purchase of mill. The Court decided the case in favor of the Company on 10

June 1999. Fauji Foundation filed appeal before Honorable Lahore High Court, Rawalpindi Bench, against the aforesaid order, and

provided bank guarantee of Rupees 2 million to the Court. Honorable Lahore High Court remanded the case to the Civil Court who decided 

the case against the Company. The Company has filed petition in Lahore High Court, Rawalpindi Bench, where the case is still pending.

2022 2021

NOTE Rupees Rupees

19 OTHER RECEIVABLES  

Considered good:

Sales tax refundable 19.1 & 19.2 3,887,414               3,889,543               

Less: Provision against sales tax refundable 19.3 (3,887,414)              -                           

-                           3,889,543               

Export rebate and claims 134,667                   134,667                   

Less: Provision against doubtful export rebate and claims (134,667)                 (134,667)                 

-                           -                           

Receivable against sale of solar panels 3,045,542               -                           

Others 20,000                     1,792,500               

3,065,542               1,792,500               

3,065,542               5,682,043               

19.1 The Company filed sales tax refundapplication with the Federal Board of Revenue.On scrutinyof the refundclaims filed by the Company,

discrepancies were found and a show cause notice dated 07 April 2015 was issued to the Company. Deputy Commissioner Inland

Revenue(Refund)vide order dated 04 August 2015 rejected the reply of the Company and sales tax refunds claim amounting to Rupees

2.46 million were also rejected. Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal before Commissioner InlandRevenue(Appeals) where the

case is still pending. No provision has been made in these financial statements as the Company is hopeful for favorable outcome.

19.2

19.3

-                           -                           

3,887,414               -                           

3,887,414               -                           

20 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Amortized cost

Fixed deposit certificate 20.1 1,142,000               1,142,000               

Fixed deposit certificate 20.1 1,141,000               1,141,000               

Accrued markup 143,661                   131,488                   

1,284,661               1,272,488               

Current portion of long term investment 14 -                           7,828,751               

1,284,661               9,101,239               

20.1

21 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash at bank:

- Saving accounts 21.1 17,438                     10,857                     

- Current accounts 4,117,603               11,882,605             

4,135,041               11,893,462             

Cash in hand 118,288                   27,172                     

4,253,329               11,920,634             

21.1 The balances in saving accounts carry interest at the rate of 8.25% to 10.75% (2021: 5.5% to 6.5%) per annum.

Provision against sales tax refundable

Opening balance

This represents fixed deposit certificate of Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited for a period of one year commenced from 28 August 2021.

Return on this certificate will be paid on maturityat the effective rate of 15.00% (2021: 6.25%) per annum.It is under lien with the bank

against guarantee given on behalf of the Company.

Provision for the year

Closing balance

Tax authorities issued notice dated 30 September 2014 for an amount of Rupees 1.092 million alleging the Company for discrepancies of

inadmissible input tax adjustments for the period from July 2009 to June 2012. The Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland

Revenue(Appeals-I) (CIR-(A))and the case was decided against the Company throughorder dated 29 May 2015. However, the Company

filed appeal against the decision of CIR-(A)before the Appellate Tribunal InlandRevenue(ATIR)who vide order dated 23 September 2019

decided the case in favor of the Company. Being aggrieved, the department filed a writ petition dated 31 December 2019 against the

judgmentof ATIR before the Honorable Islamabad High Court. Islamabad High Court vide order dated 19 January2021 remanded back

the case to ATIR for consideration of the case on its merit with law after providing opportunityof hearing to the parties. No provision has

been made in these financial statements as the Company is hopeful for a favorable outcome.



22.1 Disaggregation of revenue

2022 2021

Rupees Rupees

Primary geographical markets

Pakistan -                           1,697,693               

Major product / service lines

Yarn -                           1,697,693               

Revenue from contracts with customers -                           1,697,693               

Timing of revenue recognition

Products transferred at a point in time -                           1,697,693               

Products and services transferred over time -                           -                           

-                           1,697,693               

External revenue as reported -                           1,697,693               

Revenue is recognized at point in time as per the terms and conditions of underlying contracts with customers.

23 ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 23.1 13,931,397             14,016,661             

Property tax 5,573,676               4,463,380               

Printing and stationery 164,710                   188,614                   

Fuel and power 3,912,287               3,662,649               

Postage and telephone 417,995                   402,819                   

Travelling and conveyance 2,234,855               312,930                   

Vehicles' running 2,138,833               1,916,399               

Repair and maintenance 8,324,713               5,935,629               

Entertainment 1,362,281               2,393,558               

Advertisement 142,340                   94,300                     

Legal and professional 580,400                   1,383,192               

Fees and subscription 878,984                   938,654                   

Depreciation 11.1 2,866,563               1,559,154               

Miscellaneous 77,826                     348,173                   

42,606,860             37,616,112             

23.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include provision for gratuity amounting to Rupees 573,610 (2021: Rupees 606,477).

24 OTHER EXPENSES

Other receivables written off 15,400                     -                           

-                           77,936                     

50,000                     -                           

Operating fixed assets written off 11.1 368,776                   -                           

Auditor's remuneration 24.1 535,000                   535,000                   

Donations 24.2 118,114                   97,000                     

Impairment loss on revaluation of operating fixed assets 11.1 51,632                     -                           

Less: Provision against sales tax refundable 3,887,414               -                           

5,026,336               709,936                   

24.1 Auditor's remuneration

Audit fee 455,000                   455,000                   

Half yearly review 55,000                     55,000                     

Other certification 25,000                     25,000                     

535,000                   535,000                   

24.2 None of the directors and their spouses have any interest in the donee's fund.

Commission 

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical market, major products and service lines and timing of revenue

recognition. 

Long outstanding advances to suppliers written off

25 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Profit on deposits with banks 3,142                       67,048                     

Return on investment 576,543                   1,142,809               

579,685                   1,209,857               
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28

Profit / (loss) attributable to ordinary shares (Rupees) 71,192,838             (13,665,739)            

Weighted average number of ordinary shares     (Numbers) 3,052,429               3,052,429               

Earnings / (loss) per share (Rupees) 23.32                       (4.48)                        

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings / (loss) per share which is based on:

EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Income from non-financial assets

Gain on sale of solar panels 25.1 218,232                   -                           

Gain on remeasurement of fair value of investment properties 96,123,970             -                           

Gain of sale of operating fixed assets 758,364                   223,400                   

Gain on disposal of non-current assets held for sale - net -                           734,898                   

Rental income 31,234,691             27,342,758             

Long outstanding liabilities written back 10,000                     26,444                     

128,345,257           28,327,500             

128,924,942           29,537,357             

25.1 Gain on sale of solar panels

Sale price 9,418,232               -                           

Less: Purchase cost (9,200,000)              -                           

218,232                   -                           

26 FINANCE COST

Bank charges and commission 185,776                   175,169                   

27 TAXATION

For the year:

Current tax 27.1 13,788,015             6,343,520               

Deferred income tax 6.1 (3,874,883)              (1,669,848)              

9,913,132               4,673,672               

27.1

2022 2021

Rupees Rupees

Provision for current tax represents alternativecorporate tax only because of gross loss for the year and in view of available tax losses of

Rupees 54.14 million (2021: Rupees 69.00 million). Consequently, tax charge reconciliation is not being presented.

29 CASH USED IN OPERATIONS

Profit / (loss) before taxation 81,105,970             (8,992,067)              

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:

Depreciation 2,866,563               1,559,154               

Operating fixed assets written off 368,776                   -                           

Impairment loss on revaluation of operating fixed assets 51,632                     -                           

Provision for gratuity 573,610                   606,477                   

Gain on sale of operating fixed assets (758,364)                 (223,400)                 

Gain on disposal of non-current assets held for sale - net -                           (1,355,898)              

Gain on remeasurement of fair value of investment properties (96,123,970)            -                           

Return on investment (576,543)                 (1,142,809)              

Finance cost 185,776                   175,169                   

Profit on deposits with banks (3,142)                      (67,048)                    

Long outstanding liabilities written back (10,000)                    (26,444)                    

Other receivables written off 15,400                     77,936                     

Working capital changes 29.1 8,484,811               (30,570,362)            

(3,819,481)              (39,959,292)            
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29.1 Working capital changes

Increase / (decrease) in current assets:

Advances 1,347,165               (3,373,789)              

Other receivables 2,601,101               (1,301,707)              

3,948,266               (4,675,496)              

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and other payables 4,257,023               (25,149,866)            

Due to related parties 279,522                   (745,000)                 

4,536,545               (25,894,866)            

8,484,811               (30,570,362)            

29.2 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities.

Lease liability Unclaimed 

dividend

Balance as at 01 July 2021 -                    -                    144,947                   144,947                   

Repayment of long term financing -                    -                    -                           -                           

Short term borrowings - net -                    -                    -                           -                           

Balance as at 30 June 2022 -                    -                    144,947                   144,947                   

Total

Lease liability Short term 

borrowings

Balance as at 01 July 2020 658,531           765,478           144,947                   1,568,956               

Short term borrowings - net -                    (765,478)          -                           (765,478)                 

Repaid during the year (658,531)          -                    -                           (658,531)                 

Balance as at 30 June 2021 -                    -                    144,947                   144,947                   

30 REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND DIRECTORS

2022 2021 2021

Managerial remuneration 5,326,667        2,400,000        1,187,433               3,600,000               

Allowances

Utilities 1,329,635        1,090,386        -                           35,380                     

Entertainment 728,035           1,889,213        186,300                   402,466                   

Furnishing and maintenance of residence -                    307,055           -                           -                           

Fees and subscription 125,247           161,643           -                           121,526                   

Medical and hospitalization 9,425               1,040,019        -                           31,366                     

7,519,009        6,888,316        1,373,733               4,190,738               

Number of persons 1  1 1 1

30.1

30.2

30.3

31 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

2021

Liabilities from financing activities

2022

-----------------------------Rupees------------------------------

Unclaimed dividend

Chief Executive Officer

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration including certain benefits to the chief executive

officer and directors of the Company are as follows:

-----------------------------Rupees------------------------------

Directors

-----------------------------Rupees------------------------------

No remuneration was paid to non-executive directors of the Company.

TotalShort term 

borrowings

Chief Executive Officer is provided with the Company's maintained vehicle, personal and family's free medical facilities, personal and

family's travelling,residential telephone facilities for both business and personal use and entertainmentexpenses at actual and 1 (2021: 1)

director is provided with the Company's maintained vehicle.

2022

Liabilities from financing activities

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements in respect of directors' meeting fee paid to 1 (2021: 1) director was Rupees

10,000 (2021: Rupees 45,000).

The related parties comprise of associated undertakings,directors and key management personnel.The Company in the normal course of

business carries out transactions with various related parties. Transactionwith related parties have been specifically disclosed in relevant

notes to these financial statements.

2022 2021

Rupees Rupees
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2022 2021

32

Number of employees as at 30 June 13 23

Average number of employees during the year 18 24

33

33.1 Financial risk factors

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

(ii) Other price risk

(iii) Interest rate risk

The Company is not exposed to currency risk as it has no receivables and payables denominated in foreign currency.

Otherprice risk represents the risk that the fair valueor futurecash flows of a financial instrumentwill fluctuatebecause of changes in

market prices (other thanthose arising from interest rate risk or currencyrisk), whetherthose changes are caused by factors specific

to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instrumenttraded in the market. As at 30

June 2022, the Company is not exposed to commodity price risks.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or futurecash flows of a financial instrumentwill fluctuatebecause of changes in foreign

exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to

transactions in foreign currencies.

Risk management is carried out by the Company's finance department underpolicies approved by the Board of Directors. The Company's

finance department evaluates and hedges financial risks. The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies

covering specific areas such as currency risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, use of derivative financial

instruments and non-derivative financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity. 

The Company's activities expose it to a varietyof financial risks: market risk (includingcurrencyrisk, other price risk and interest rate risk),

credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and

seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

The Company's interest rate risk arises from investments and bank balances in saving accounts. Financial instruments at variable

rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. Financial instruments at fixed rate expose the Company to fair value

interest rate risk.

This represents the risk that the fair value or futurecash flows of a financial instrumentwill fluctuatebecause of changes in market

interest rates.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

2022 2021

Rupees Rupees

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets

Investments 7,522,621               9,101,239               

Floating rate instruments

Financial assets

Bank balances - saving accounts 17,438                     10,857                     

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

If interest rates at the year end date, fluctuatesby 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant,profit before taxation for the

year would have been Rupees 174 (2021: Rupees 109) higher / lower, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest on saving

accounts.This analysis is prepared assuming the amountsof financial instrumentsoutstandingat reporting date were outstandingfor

the whole year.

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a

change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss of the Company.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Companys interest bearing financial instruments was:



4,065,647

4,135,041     

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 7,522,621     

11,657,662  

manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of fundingthrough

2022, the Company had Rupees 4.25 million (2021: Rupees 11.92 million) cash and bank

contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments. The amount disclosed

undiscounted cash flows:

Deposits, advances, other receivables and due from related parties 

to advances to employees, other receivables and due from related parties, management

there is no impairment loss and these are recoverable in full.

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

has made deposits with the utility companies and others. The management does not expect

losses on such deposit and consider such amount is receivable upon termination of service contract with respective parties. 

Company's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving

financial standing, managementdoes not expect non-performanceby these counterparties on

the Company. Accordingly the credit risk is minimal.

(b) Credit risk

2022 2021

Rupees Rupees

Investments 7,522,621     9,101,239       

Deposits 9,151,434     9,151,434       

Advances 17,890          11,890            

Other receivables 3,065,542     1,792,500       

Bank balances 4,135,041     11,893,462    

23,892,528  31,950,525    

2022 2021

Short term Long term Agency Rupees Rupees

Banks

National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA PACRA -                 2,822              

Bank Alfalah Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 14,120          124,791          

Habib Bank Limited A1+ AAA JCR-VIS 4,569            83,083            

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 8,424            31,445            

MCB Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 28,985          129,055          

Silkbank Limited A2 A- JCR-VIS 6,636            890                  

The Bank of Khyber A1 A PACRA 2,049            2,049              

Faysal Bank Limited A1+ AA PACRA 1,841            3,826              

Askari Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 2,770            8,850              

Meezan Bank Limited A1+ AAA JCR-VIS      11,506,651    

11,893,462    

Investments

9,101,239       

20,994,701    

(c) Liquidity risk

The Company sponsors' support.

As at 30 June balances. Following

are the in the table are

With respect has assessed that

The Company to incur material

Due to the due consideration to

their strong their obligations to

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrumentwill cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to

discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum

exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

Rating

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to externalcredit

ratings (If available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate:
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Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2022.

Carrying 

amount

Contractual 

cash flows

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables 56,531,058     56,531,058  

Due to related parties 300,000          300,000        

-------- Rupees -------

-------- Rupees -------

6 months or 

less

56,531,058    

300,000          

Unclaimed dividend 144,947          144,947        144,947          

56,976,005     56,976,005  56,976,005    

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2021.

Carrying 

amount

Contractual 

cash flows

6 months or 

less

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables 56,064,958     56,064,958  56,064,958    

Due to related parties 20,478            20,478          20,478            

Unclaimed dividend 144,947          144,947        144,947          

56,230,383     56,230,383  56,230,383    

The contractualcash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest rates / mark

up rates effective as at 30 June.

33.2 Financial instruments by categories

2022 2021

Rupees Rupees

As at 30 June

Investments 7,522,621     9,101,239       

Deposits 9,151,434     9,151,434       

Advances 17,890          11,890            

Other receivables 3,065,542     1,792,500       

Cash and bank balances 4,253,329     11,920,634    

24,010,816  31,977,697    

2022 2021

Rupees Rupees

Trade and other payables 56,531,058  56,064,958    

Due to related parties 300,000        20,478            

Unclaimed dividend 144,947        144,947          

56,976,005  56,230,383    

Financial liabilities at 

amortized cost

Financial assets at 

amortized cost
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33.3 Reconciliation to the line items presented in the statement of financial position is as follows:

 Financial 

assets 

 Non-

financial 

assets 

 Total as per 

statement of 

financial 

position 

 Financial 

assets 

 Non-

financial 

assets 

 Total as per 

statement of 

financial 

position 

Assets as per statement of financial position

Advances 17,890         3,215,310    3,233,200       11,890        4,568,475    4,580,365       

Other receivables 3,065,542     -             3,065,542       1,792,500    3,889,543    5,682,043       

Investments 7,522,621     -             7,522,621       9,101,239    -             9,101,239       

Deposits 9,151,434     -             9,151,434       9,151,434    -             9,151,434       

Cash and bank balances 4,253,329     -             4,253,329       11,920,634   -             11,920,634      

24,010,816 3,215,310 27,226,126 31,977,697 8,458,018 40,435,715

 Financial 

liabilities 

 Non-

financial 

liabilities 

 Total as per 

statement of 

financial 

position 

 Financial 

liabilities 

 Non-

financial 

liabilities 

 Total as per 

statement of 

financial 

position 

Liabilities as per statement of financial position

Trade and other payables 56,531,058   44,444,168  100,975,226    56,064,958   20,404,895  76,469,853      

Due to related parties 300,000       -             300,000          20,478        -             20,478            

Unclaimed dividend 144,947       -             144,947          144,947       -             144,947          

56,976,005   44,444,168  101,420,173    56,230,383   20,404,895  76,635,278      

2022 2021

------------ Rupees ------------ ------------ Rupees ------------

2022 2021

------------ Rupees ------------ ------------ Rupees ------------

34 RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(i) Fair value hierarchy

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrumentis included in level3.

This is the case for unlisted equity securities. 

Judgements and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognized and

measured at fair value in these financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in

determining fair value, the Company classify its financial instruments into the following three levels. However, as at the

reporting date, the Company has no such type of financial instrumentswhich are required to be grouped into these levels.

These levels are explained as under:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and equity

securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial

assets held by the Company is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter

derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and relyas little as

possible on entity-specificestimates. If all significant inputs required to fair valuean instrumentare observable, the instrument

is included in level 2.

33.4 Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

33.5 Capital risk management

As on reporting date, recognized financial instrumentsare not subject to offsetting as there are no enforceable master netting

arrangements and similar agreements.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continueas a going concern in

order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structureto

reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue new shares or sell

assets to reduce debt. 

                         

                         



Annual Report 2022

66 D.M. Textile Mills Limited

Changes in fair values are analyzed at each reporting date during the annual valuation discussion between the Chief

Financial Officer and the valuers.As part of this discussion the team presents a report that explains the reason for the fair

value movements.

35 RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

(i) Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Freehold land                  -      273,220,000                     -      273,220,000 

Non factory buildings                  -          9,163,800                     -          9,163,800 

Electric installations                  -          2,600,000                     -          2,600,000 

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment                  -              149,300                     -             149,300 

Vehicles                  -        11,650,000                     -        11,650,000 

                 -      296,783,100                     -      296,783,100 

Investment properties - land and building                  -      449,425,000                     -      449,425,000 

Total non-financial assets                  -      746,208,100                     -      746,208,100 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Freehold land                  -      209,211,600                     -      209,211,600 

Non factory buildings                  -          9,223,116                     -          9,223,116 

Electric installations                  -          3,132,108                     -          3,132,108 

Factory equipment                  -              409,054                     -             409,054 

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment                  -              252,071                     -             252,071 

Vehicles                  -          2,751,950                     -          2,751,950 

                 -      224,979,899                     -      224,979,899 

Investment properties - land and building                  -      353,301,030                     -      353,301,030 

Total non-financial assets                  -      578,280,929                     -      578,280,929 

(ii) Valuation techniques used to determine level 2 fair values

Valuation processes

At 30 June 2022

----------------- Rupees -----------------

----------------- Rupees -----------------

At 30 June 2021

Judgments and estimates are made in determining the fair value of non-financial assets that are recognised and measured at 

fair value in these financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair

value, the Company has classified its non-financial assets into the following three levels.

The Companys policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the

reporting period.

The Company engages external, independent and qualified valuers to determine the fair value of the Companys operating

fixed assets and investment properties after regular intervals. As at 30 June 2022, the fair values of the investment properties, 

freehold land (disclosed in operating fixed assets), non-factorybuildings, electric installations, furniture, fixtures and office

equipment and vehicles (disclosed in operating fixed assets) have been determined by Danish Enterprises and Construction.

The Company obtains independent valuations for its operating fixed assets and investmentproperties after regular intervals.

The managementupdates the assessment of the fair valueof each property, taking into account the most recent independent

valuations. The management determine a property's value within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. The best

evidence of fair valueof land is currentprices in an active market for similar lands. The best evidence of fair value of buildings

is to calculate fair depreciated market valueby applying an appropriate annual rate of depreciation on the new construction/

replacement value of the same building. The best evidence of fair value of electric installations, furniturefixtures and office

equipment and vehicles is to calculate fair depreciated market value by applying an appropriate annual rate of depreciation

on the replacement value / new purchase of the same and electric installation.

Therewere no transfersbetween levels1 and 2 for recurring fair valuemeasurementsduring the year. Further, there was

no transfer in and out of level 3 measurements.
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36 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

37 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

38 GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee.

No significant reclassification / rearrangement of corresponding figures  have been made in these financial statements.

These financial statements were authorized for issue on  October 05,2022  by the Board of Directors of the Company.

    CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR      CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

(Rupees in 000)

Period ended

Particulars 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Assets employed

Fixed Assets 791,054          640,336       678,391    564,437       574,652       601,279        

Advance against property -                 -              -           -              -              -               

Due from related party -                 -              -           -              -              -               

Long term deposits/investments 9,151              9,151           16,509      31,338         30,931         30,549          

Current assets 29,457            48,904         84,012      60,897         59,941         62,146          

Total assets employed 829,662          698,391       778,912    656,672       665,524       693,974        

Financed by:

Shareholder's equity 54,267            (17,829)        (67,036)     (80,857)        (75,583)        (61,826)         

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 577,710          512,149       574,875    569,362       571,260       575,018        

631,977          494,320       507,839    488,505       495,677       513,192        

Long Term Financing -                 -              -           -              1,766          5,131           

Long term liabilities 3,587              3,999           3,817       3,356          3,130          10,063          

Deferred liabilities -                 2,907           4,517       5,397          7,241          14,856          

Current liabilities 124,965          108,586       131,694    128,892       127,186       120,209        

Total funds invested 128,552          115,492       140,028    137,645       139,323       150,259        

Profit & (Loss)

Turn over -                 -              -           -              -              -               

Gross profit/Loss) -                 (28)              46,800      24,044         -              -               

Operating profit/(loss) 81,292 (8,817)          19,061      (3,258)         (17,496)        (8,688)          

Finance charges (185) (175)             (213)         (417)            (674)            (893)             

Profit/(loss) before taxation 81,106 (8,992)          18,847      (3,676)         (18,171)        (9,582)          

Profit/(loss) after taxation 71,193 (13,666)        13,509      (7,341)         (15,862)        (2,775)          

Extra ordinary items - - - - - - 

Net profit/(loss) 71,193 (13,666)        13,509      (7,341)         (15,862) (2,775)          

Actual production (M Kgs) -                 -              -           -              -              -               

Converted into 20's (M Kgs) -                 -              -           -              -              -               

Earning/(loss) per share 23.32              (4.48)            4.43         (2.41)           (5.20)           (0.91)            

Spindles installed Nos. -                 -              -           -              2,064          2,064           

Spindles worked  Nos. -                 -              -           -              -              -               

Shifts per day -                 -              -           -              -              -               

30 June
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FORM 34
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

(Section 227(2)(f))

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

1.1 Name of the Company D.M. TEXTILE MILS LIMITED

2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 30-06-2022

     ------Shareholdings------

4. No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held

163 1 100 7,957

77 101 500 22,008

27 501 1,000 22,129

24 1,001 5,000 50,255

10 5,001 10,000 74,239

1 10,001 15,000 11,558

2 15,001 20,000 33,600

3 20,001 25,000 70,900

1 25,001 30,000 25,169

3 30,001 35,000 93,975

2 40,001 45,000 86,000

1 75,001 80,000 77,700

3 85,001 90,000 262,948

2 95,001 100,000 197,530

1 100,001 105,000 100,715

1 130,001 135,000 130,124

2 135,001 140,000 275,652

2 150,001 155,000 302,189

1 260,001 265,000 263,508

1 265,001 270,000 269,614

1 670,001 675,000 674,659

328 3,052,429

2.3 Categories of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

2.3.1  Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 1,288,387 42.2086%

         and their spouse and minor children

2.3.2  Associated Companies, 0 0.0000%

         undertakings and related

         parties. (Parent Company)

2.3.3  NIT and ICP 269,876 8.8414%

2.3.4  Banks Development 1,474 0.0483%

         Financial Institutions, Non

         Banking Financial Institutions.

2.3.5  Insurance Companies 0 0.0000%

2.3.6  Modarabas and Mutual 0 0.0000%

      Funds

2.3.7  Shareholders holding 10% 674,659 22.1024%

         or more

2.3.8  General Public

a. Local 1,452,907 47.5984%

b. Foreign 0 0.0000%

2.3.9 Others (to be specified)

-  Joint Stock Companies 7,930 0.2598%

-  Pension Funds 30,775 1.0082%

-  Others 1,080 0.0354%
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Categories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)
As on June 30, 2022

Sr. No. Name
No. of 

Shares Held
Percentage

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail): -              -             

Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail) -              -             

Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):  

1 MIAN HABIB ULLAH (CDC) 263,508       8.6327

2 MR. ABRAR ALAM 108,200       3.5447

3 MR. MOHAMMAD SALMAN KHAN 100              0.0033

4 MR. AMEER ZEB (CDC) 139,500       4.5701

5 MR. SAMI ULLAH 674,659       22.1024

6 RAO KHALID PERVAIZ 650              0.0213

7 SYED HAMEED UL HAQ (CDC) 1,770           0.0580

8 MRS. RIFFAT HABIB W/O HABIB ULLAH 100,000       3.2761

Executives: -              -             

Public Sector Companies & Corporations: -              -             

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 32,249         1.0565

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

1 MR. SAMI ULLAH 674,659       22.1024

2 MR. HABIB ULLAH (CDC) 263,508       8.6327

3 CDC -TRUSTEE NATIOANAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST (CDC) 269,614       8.8328

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their

spouses and minor children shall also be disclosed:

S.No NAME SALE PURCHASE
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PROXY FORM

I/We

of

in the district

and holder of

per share Register Folio No.

appoint

failing him of

as my / our proxy to vote of me / us on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company

to be held on October 27, 2022 at 3:00 pm or at any adjournment thereof.

(Number of Shares)

being a member of D.M. Textile Mills Limited

ordinary share as

hereby

of

day of 2022Signed this

Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the company's Registered Office, 
Westridge, Rawalpindi. not later than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting and
must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed.

1.

2. CDC Shareholders are requested to bring with them their National Identity Cards along with
the Participants' ID numbers and their account numbers at the time of attending the 
Annual General Meeting in order to facilitate identification of the respective shareholders.

1. Witness:

Signature

Name

Address

2. Witness:

Signature

Name

Address

Shareholder’s Folio No.

Signature of Member

Affix
Revenue

Stamps of
Rs. 5/-

CDC A/c No.

CNIC No.

Note:

D.M. Textile Mills Limited
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